
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
If any disabled person needs any type of accommodation, please notify 

Central Yavapai Fire District at (928) 772-7711 prior to the scheduled meeting time.  
Page 1 of 2 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Chino Valley Fire District Board of 
Directors and the general public that the Chino Valley Fire District will hold a meeting open to the public on 
Tuesday, June 21, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. The meeting will be held at Chino Valley Fire District, Administration 
Classroom, 1133 W. Road 3 North, Chino Valley, Arizona. The Board may vote to go into Executive Session on 
any agenda item, pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3) for discussion and consultation for legal advice with the 
District’s Attorney on matters as set forth in the agenda item. The following topics and any variables thereto, 
will be subject to Board consideration, discussion, approval, or other action. All items are set for possible action. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL OF BOARD MEMBERS 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. PRESENTATIONS 
 

A. The Compass 
 
4. PUBLIC HEARING FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 BUDGET 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING 2012 INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE AMENDMENTS 
 
6. CALL TO THE PUBLIC 

Those wishing to address the Central Yavapai Fire District Board need not request permission in advance. 
The Fire District Board is not permitted to discuss or take action on any item raised in the Call to the Public 
due to restrictions of the Open Meeting Law; however, individual Board members may be permitted to 
respond to criticism directed to them. Otherwise, the Board may direct the staff to review the matter or the 
matter may be placed on a future agenda. 

 
7. CONSENT AGENDA 

All matters listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Central Yavapai Fire 
District Board and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion on these items. If 
discussion is desired, that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered 
separately for discussion and possible action. 

 
A. Approve Regular Session Minutes of May 17, 2016 
B. Approve Executive Session Minutes of May 17, 2016 
C. Approve General Fund Financial Statements 
D. Approve Bond Debt Service Financial Statements 

8. CORRESPONDENCE 
A. Letters from the Public 

 
B. Monthly Division Reports from the Fire Chief and staff in regard to current activities of the Fire District 

and the status and progress relating thereto 
 
9. OLD BUSINESS  

A. Discussion Regarding Chino Valley Fire District Bonds 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Approve Resolution 2016- and Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Final Budget 
B. Approve Fiscal Certification Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Budget 
C. Approve Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Bond Repayment Tax Rate 
D. Discussion and Possible Approval of Capital Reserve Fund Transfer to CAFMA in the Amount of 

$2,576,517.78 to be Completed Prior to June 30, 2016 
E. Approve 2012 International Fire Code Amendments and Resolution 2016-02 
F. Approve Resolution 2016-03 and Single Owner Annexation 16 W. Big Chino Road, Paulden - Parcel 

#304-06-102A. 



~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
If any disabled person needs any type of accommodation, please notify 

Central Yavapai Fire District at (928) 772-7711 prior to the scheduled meeting time.  
Page 2 of 2 

G. Approve Resolution 2016-04 and Single Owner Annexation 320 E Verde Ranch Rd, Paulden – Parcel # 
304-01-055B 

H. Approve J615 Investigation Policy; Approve Joint Policies Effective July 1, 2016: J407 Retirement 
and Deferred Compensation Benefits, J408 Insurance and Related Benefits 
 

11. ADJOURNMENT 



TO:  Fire Board 
FROM: Chief Freitag 
DATE:  June 8, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
Approve Consent Agenda items A through D 
  
If you have any questions, please call Assistant Chief of Administration Tharp or myself 
at 772-7711. 
  
 



 

CHINO VALLEY FIRE DISTRICT 
FIRE BOARD 

REGULAR SESSION 
 

May 17, 2016 
 

MINUTES 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL OF BOARD MEMBERS 

 
Chairperson Ducote called the Chino Valley Fire District Fire Board meeting to order on 
Tuesday, May 17, 2016 at 5:54 p.m. at the Town of Prescott Valley, Library Auditorium, 
7401 E. Civic Circle, Prescott Valley, Arizona. 

 
Members Present: Board Chairperson Cyndy Ducote, Board Clerk Dave Dobbs, 

Board Members Julie Pettit, Travis Bard, and Dave McConnell 
 
Members Absent: None 
 
Staff: Fire Chief Scott Freitag, Assistant Chief of Administration Dave 

Tharp, Administrative Assistant III Laura Mowrer 
 
Others in Attendance: Attorney Nick Cornelius 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

Chairperson Ducote led the recitation of the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

3. CALL TO THE PUBLIC 
 

Chairperson Ducote opened the meeting for public comment. 
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 

4. CONSENT AGENDA 
All matters listed under Consent Agenda are considered routine by the Chino Valley Fire 
District Board and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion on 
these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda 
and will be considered separately for discussion and possible action. 

 
A. Approve April 6, 2016 Special Session Minutes of Central Yavapai Fire District, Chino 

Valley Fire District, and Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority Board Meeting 
B. Approve Regular Session Minutes  April 19, 2016 
C. Approve General Fund and Capital Reserve Financial Statements 
D. Approve Bond Debt Service Financials 
E. Approve Bond Fund 2007 Financials 

Page 3 of 126



Chino Valley Fire District 
Regular Session – May 17, 2016 

Page 2 
 

F. Approve Fire Protection Agreements  Buckley, Burton 
G. Discussion and Approve Cooperative Intergovernmental Agreement with Arizona 

State Forestry Division 
 

Board Member Bard made a motion to approve the consent agenda. Board Member 
Pettit seconded the motion. MOTION CARRIED 

 
AYES: Bard, Dobbs, Ducote, McConnell, Pettit 
NAYS: None 

 
5. CORRESPONDENCE 
 

A. Letters from the Public 
 
Chief Freitag mentioned a thank you letter that we received for his participation in a 
career day at Glassford Hill Middle School. 
 

B. Monthly Division Reports from the Fire Chief and staff in regard to current activities of 
the Fire District and the status and progress relating thereto 
 
Chief Freitag stated that Senate Bill 1244 passed with an emergency clause, and the 
Governor signed it into law. This bill provides for wildland prompt pay. It allows fire 
districts to maintain their fire district assistance tax (FDAT) when merging or 
consolidating. It also provides a one-time override provision that can be used November 
2016 or November 2017 to increase their maximum tax rate by $.25 for only five years 
maximum. This is a short-term fix while the State works on correcting revenue issues 
that fire districts are experiencing. Chief Freitag explained that he does not believe 
Chino Valley is in a position that requires asking for this override. He pointed out that 
when fire districts are represented at the State level, things can be accomplished. 
 
Chief Freitag mentioned that the Fire Authority is on track, and finance is preparing to 
run a mock payroll to minimize any errors on the first payroll. 
 
Chief Freitag mentioned that a Chino resident has contacted him several times, and the 
resident has also spoken with Attorney Cornelius. The resident wanted to measure and 
photograph the administrative building, and he wanted to decide for the Board if Central 
should purchase the property. He was advised that his concerns would be best 
addressed during the Call to the Public portion of the Board meeting, and he is welcome 
to address the Board. He could also submit a letter to the Board and the Board could 
respond in writing.  
 
Attorney Cornelius strongly recommended that any public issue should be properly 
addressed before the Fire Board. The Board may direct staff to place the item on a 
future agenda. He explained that the Fire District facilities are open to the public, but are 
not to be disrupted. They are public facilities, but are not for public use and access. It is 

Page 4 of 126



Chino Valley Fire District 
Regular Session – May 17, 2016 

Page 3 
 

inappropriate to take pictures of staff. It is a structure, and the plans are part of public 
record and can be obtained.  
 

6. OLD BUSINESS 
 

A. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Chino Valley Fire District Bonds 
 
Chief Freitag stated that the Board has already approved the bonds via resolution and 
provided staff direction. He explained that we received responses from NBH Bank, 
Capital One, BBVA, and NB Arizona Public Financial Services. He stated that Capital 
One was selected. 
 
NBH Bank had a 2.51% rate; however, the rate floated until 10 days prior to locking in 
the rate. That rate went above the 2.65% rate from Capital One that was locked in 
immediately.  
 
BBVA's rate was 2.70% and could float. The fourth option with NB Arizona was a hybrid 
similar to an ARM with floating rates. 
 
Chief Freitag stated that Capital One is the preferred lender with a fixed rate of 2.65%. 
Chief Freitag gave Chief Tharp credit for asking Stifel to run the fiscal analysis at 3.25%; 
these rates are better than the analysis.  
 
Chief Freitag explained that we projected we could keep the bond rate at $.42 at 3.25% 
with zero growth. With these rates, our projections are that the bond debt service rate 
will come down over time with refinancing the current bonds and issuing $1.5 mil new 
bonds to replace vehicles and make some station upgrades. We just completed our due 
diligence call with Stifle, Capital One, and the underwriters on Monday and received 
confirmation that our credit has been approved. We will close on the bonds on June 8, 
2016. We will need a signature from Board Chair and Clerk as previously approved. 
Chief Freitag stated that the bond is better than anticipated.  
 
Chief Freitag stated there is no Board direction required on this item. 
 

7. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Discussion and Approval to Purchase Portable Radios 
 
Chief Freitag asked that this item be removed from the agenda as Legal Counsel is 
working through contract issues with Motorola.  
 
Attorney Cornelius stated that this item may require a special meeting due to time 
constraints to take advantage of exceptional pricing. 
 

B. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding to Station 64, 238 N. State Route 89 

Page 5 of 126



Chino Valley Fire District 
Regular Session – May 17, 2016 

Page 4 
 

 
Chief Freitag asked for the Board’s direction on this item. This property is currently 
being leased, and the tenant has the first right of refusal. Chief Freitag asked if staff 
could talk with the tenant to determine their interest in the property. 
 
Board consensus was for Chief to speak with the tenant and other interested parties. 
 

C. Discussion and Possible Approval of Tentative Fiscal Year 20162017 Budget 
 
Chief Freitag explained that the CAFMA budget is presented for comparison only; the 
Chino Valley budget needs approval. He mentioned that the election expenses have 
increased from $5,000 to $16,000. Central Yavapai's was increased from $25,000 to 
$75,000 due to the Election Department no longer receiving funding from the State. 
Chino Valley will only need to expend those funds if there are more candidates than 
vacant Board positions. There are some changes to the CAFMA budget which include 
the Prescott Regional Communications Center (PRCC) increase of $23,000 and the 
Fire Chief's salary. The administrative building was added for bookkeeping purposes 
and there were some costs for CAFMA after July 1. These changes did not change the 
Chino Valley budget. 
 
Chief Tharp mentioned that once the tentative budget is approved, it cannot be 
increased. 
 
Board Member Pettit stated that CAFMA has received an increase of $50,000 from 
PRCC, and there is not cap in the contract. If there are additional costs, we can be 
billed.  
 
Board Chair Ducote asked when the contract can be reviewed. 
 
Chief Freitag explained that Prescott Valley Police Department notified us of the 
increase; we called them when we noticed that last increase. We are concerned that the 
bills keep increasing, but the only recourse we have is the Prescott City Manager or 
Prescott City Council. We will have legal counsel review the agreement and speak with 
the other parties as to not miss a window to re-negotiate.  
 
Attorney Cornelius mentioned that there was a meeting with Prescott City Manager 
McConnell prior to Chief Freitag’s tenure regarding several matters; this agreement was 
not written in the best interest of all partners.  
 
The current PRCC members include:  Prescott Valley Police Department, Central 
Yavapai and Chino Valley Fire Districts, Prescott Police, Prescott Fire, Groom Creek, 
Walker, and Tribal Police. Mayer Fire District is trying to re-enter. Williamson Valley Fire 
has given 365 days’ notice to cancel their contract.  
 

Page 6 of 126



Chino Valley Fire District 
Regular Session – May 17, 2016 

Page 5 
 

Chief Freitag mentioned that Chief Polacek is the Fire Liaison and gives us more of a 
voice. We were not given an explanation of what transpired when we received the 
increased budget. A representative from Prescott Valley Police Department provided us 
with an explanation to the increase. 
 
Board Member Pettit asked if there was recourse for the members to ask for a fiscal 
audit and management review. Attorney Cornelius stated that does not appear in the 
contract. There is language that prevents from recovering attorney's fees and costs. 
 
Board Member Bard made a motion to approve the 20162017 Budget for $3,899,599. 
Board Member Pettit seconded the motion. MOTION CARRIED 
 
AYES: Bard, Dobbs, Ducote, McConnell, Pettit 
NAYS: None 
 

D. Approve Amendment to Joint Policy J121 Policy Committee; Approve New Joint 
Policies J241 Temporary Appointment, J403 Leave Benefits; Remove Policy 350 
Demotions Previously Replaced by Policy J243 Demotions 
 
Chief Freitag explained that the Demotions Policy was previously approved as a joint 
policy. Policy J121 has a basic update and J241 Temporary Appointment is a new joint 
policy. Policy J403 Leave Benefits has been extensively revised. 
 
Board Member Pettit made a motion to approve the amendments to joint policy J121 
Policy Committee, approve new joint policy J241 Temporary Appointment, J403 Leave 
Benefits, and to remove policy 350 Demotions previously replaced by policy J243 
Demotions. Board Member Bard seconded the motion. MOTION CARRIED 
 
AYES: Bard, Dobbs, Ducote, McConnell, Pettit 
NAYS: None 
 

E. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Board Meeting Times 
 
Chief Freitag explained that the CAFMA meeting will be the longer meeting with the 
Central Yavapai and Chino Valley meetings smaller at about 30 minutes. The previous 
Boards discussed changing times, and they were informed of the conflict with Chair 
Ducote’s schedule. He mentioned that we can utilize Prescott Valley’s facilities on 
Tuesdays. The other Boards suggested that Central Yavapai's meeting begin at 4:00 
p.m., CAFMA's at 4:30 p.m., and Chino's at 6:00 p.m. He asked for the Board’s 
direction. 
 
Chief Freitag confirmed that the Board was in agreement with the June meeting 
schedule of Central Yavapai beginning at 2:00 p.m., CAFMA at 3:30 p.m., and the 
Chino meeting beginning at 6:00 p.m. The June meetings will be held in Chino Valley. 
 

Page 7 of 126



Chino Valley Fire District 
Regular Session – May 17, 2016 

Page 6 
 

The July meetings will be:  Central Yavapai at 4:00 p.m., CAFMA at 4:30 p.m. and 
Chino at 6:00 p.m. 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Board Member Pettit made a motion to adjourn. Board Member Dobbs seconded the 
motion. MOTION CARRIED 
 
AYES: Bard, Dobbs, Ducote, McConnell, Pettit 
NAYS: None 
 
Chairperson Ducote adjourned the meeting at 6:41 p.m. 

 
 
   
 Date 
 
   
 Dave Dobbs, Board Clerk 
 

Page 8 of 126















Real Estate Tax 
65.45% 

UPP Tax 
2.85% 

FDAT 
28.03% 

Fire Prot. 
Contracts 

0.31% 

Training Classes 
0.00% 

Fire 
Prevention 

0.00% 

JMA Exp 
Reimburse 

0.00% 

Station 64 
Lease 
0.33% Interest Income 

0.18% 

Other Income 
2.85% 

Real Estate Tax

UPP Tax

FDAT

Fire Prot.
Contracts

Training Classes

Fire
Prevention

JMA Exp
Reimburse

Station 64
Lease

Interest Income

Other Income

            CVFD   
FY 2015 - 2016 

General Fund Revenue 
For the Period Ending 05/31/16 



P:\Administration - Chino Valley\Finance\Financials\FYE 06-30-16\Rev Exp Graphs 2016-05-31.xlsx\Rev Data

CVFD 
Revenue

Current YTD
Month Revenue Budget

Real Estate Tax 119,935$         3,411,431$      65.44
UPP Tax 5,221$             69,621$           2.85
FDAT 51,376$           313,900$         28.03
Fire Prot.
Contracts 564$                59,000$           0.31
Training Classes -$                 -$                0.00
Fire
Prevention -$                 -$                0.00
JMA Exp
Reimburse -$                 10,000$           0.00
Station 64
Lease 612$                7,200$             0.33
Interest Income 335$                6,000$             0.18
Other Income 5,221$             152,000$         2.85

183,264$         4,029,152$      99.98   



.

Personnel  
86.75% 

Supplies 
6.83% 

Services 
6.42% 

Capital Outlay 
0.00% 

Personnel

Supplies

Services

Capital Outlay

            CVFD   
FY 2015 - 2016 

General Fund Expenditures 
For the Period Ending 05/31/16 

 



P:\Administration - Chino Valley\Finance\Financials\FYE 06-30-16\Rev Exp Graphs 2016-05-31.xlsx\Exp Data

CVFD
Expenses

Current Month  
Actual YTD Budget

Personnel 223,212$             3,327,797$          86.75     
Supplies 17,569$               456,730$             6.83       
Services 16,532$               244,625$             6.42       
Capital Outlay -$                     -$                     -         

257,313$             4,029,152$          100        



FY 15-16

Total Levy $3,481,052

Month Collected

July $32,572

% 0.936%

% To Date 0.9357%

August $26,909

% 0.773%

% To Date 1.7087%

September $296,716

% 8.524%

% To Date 10.2324%

October $1,237,993

% 35.564%

% To Date 45.7962%

November $289,817

% 8.326%

% To Date 54.1218%

December $220,662

% 6.3389%

% To Date 60.4607%

January $76,744

% 2.2046%

% To Date 62.6653%

February $87,184

% 2.5045%

% To Date 65.1698%

March $124,511

% 3.5768%

% To Date 68.7467%

April $910,876

% 26.1667%

% To Date 94.9134%

May $125,156

% 3.5954%

% To Date 98.5087%

June $0

% 0.0000%

% To Date 98.5087%

TOTALS $3,429,139

Delinquency 1.4913%

Chino Valley Fire District

General Fund Tax Collection Information

P:\Administration - Chino Valley\Finance\Check Reconciliations\TAX_COLL.XLS



FY 14-15

Total Levy $313,900

Month Collected

July $2,501

% 0.797%

% To Date 0.7966%

August $1,456

% 0.464%

% To Date 1.2606%

September $26,332

% 8.389%

% To Date 9.6492%

October $97,909

% 31.191%

% To Date 40.8405%

November $43,410

% 13.8292%

% To Date 54.6697%

December $20,201

% 6.4354%

% To Date 61.1052%

January $10,565

% 3.3658%

% To Date 64.4710%

February $7,946

% 2.531%

% To Date 67.0024%

March $12,018

% 3.8286%

% To Date 70.8310%

April $35,416

% 11.2825%

% To Date 82.1134%

May $51,376

% 16.3671%

% To Date 98.4805%

June $0

% 0.0000%

% To Date 98.4805%

TOTALS $309,130

Delinquency 1.5195%

100.0000%

Chino Valley Fire District

FDAT Collection Information

P:\Administration - Chino Valley\Finance\Check Reconciliations\TAX_COLL.XLS



 

July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June

32,572                26,909                296,715          1,237,993          289,817            220,662             76,744               87,184               124,511          910,876          125,156         290,088          

416                      9,359                   8,198              47,063               8,182                 1,756                  437                     1,139                  1,124              145                  564                 4,917              

2,500                   1,456                   26,332            97,909               43,410               20,201               10,565               7,946                  12,018            35,416            51,376           26,158            

3,412                   2,147                   1,212              6,062                  -                     600                     2,125                  3,725                  3,550              -                  -                  13,933            

889                      2,760                   71                    60                       326                    265                     3,526                  73                       1,163              627                  335                 500                  

-                       -                       -                  -                      -                     -                      -                      -                      -                  -                  -                  -                  

7,447                   3,535                   1,263              46                       1,209                 962                     250                     3,724                  77,614            349,453          5,833              7,251              

47,236                46,166                333,791          1,389,133          342,944            244,446             93,647               103,791             219,980          1,296,518      183,264         342,846          

441,915              259,514              380,919          302,239             316,677            238,380             203,551             278,720             388,162          276,550          223,212         277,316          

19,675                27,106                25,802            29,718               36,359               34,356               22,010               115,058             79,450            13,352            17,569           22,677            

19,069                7,190                   10,140            11,872               5,520                 19,606               5,979                  31,065               17,610            12,217            16,532           35,826            

-                       -                       -                  -                      -                     -                      5,248                  -                      -                  -                  -                  2,375              

480,659              293,810              416,861          343,830             358,556            292,342             236,788             424,843             485,222          302,119          257,313         338,194          

-433423 (247,644)             (83,070)           1,045,304          (15,612)             (47,896)              (143,141)            (321,052)            (265,242)        994,400          (74,049)          4,652              

(433,423)             (681,067)             (764,137)        281,167             265,555            217,659             74,518               (246,535)            (511,777)        482,623          408,574         413,226          

(378,423)             (626,067)             (709,137)        336,167             320,555            272,659             129,518             (191,535)            (456,777)        537,623          463,574         468,226          

989,198              989,198              989,198          989,198             989,198            989,198             989,198             989,198             989,198          989,198          2,576,518      989,198          

$2,576,517.78

ExpenditureTotals:

Monthly Net Cash

Cumulative Net Cash

Cash Balance        

($55,000)

Capital Reserve

Expenditures:

Personnel Costs

Supplies/ Consum.

Misc. Service Expenses

Capital Expenses

FDAT

Fee for Service

Interest Income

Grants

Misc. Non Levy

RevenueTotals:

2015 - 2016 Cash Flow by Month : June Board Meeting

Actual Estimated

Revenues:

Property Taxes

Fire ProtectionContracts



























Chino Valley Fire District Fiscal Year

Capital Reserve Project Fund 2015-16

Date Transaction Debit Credit Balance

07/01/15 Fiscal Year Beginning Balance $989,197.85

07/31/15 Interest $0.00 $989,197.85

08/31/15 Interest $0.00 $989,197.85

09/30/15 Interest $0.00 $989,197.85

10/31/15 Interest $0.00 $989,197.85

11/30/15 Interest $0.00 $989,197.85

12/31/15 Interest $0.00 $989,197.85

01/31/16 Interest $0.00 $989,197.85

02/29/16 Interest $0.00 $989,197.85

03/31/16 Interest $0.00 $989,197.85

04/30/16 Interest $0.00 $989,197.85

05/31/16 Transfer In $1,587,319.93 $2,576,517.78

























From: Mat Mayhall  
Sent: Thursday, May 12, 2016 4:30 PM 
To: All Personnel 
Subject: FW: Incident on  
  
Good job guys! 
  
From: Rob Zazueta  
Sent: Thursday, May 12, 2016 2:42 PM 
To: Mat Mayhall 
Cc: Alan Schuster; Eric Ginn; Jeff Polacek 
Subject: Incident on Beverly Ln 
  
Chief, 
  
I wanted to take a moment to share a positive experience during our shift today.  Over the past few 
weeks, the crews at Station 62 have been running calls to a residence on . to assist an elderly 
woman off of the ground and to assist in her basic day to day needs.  This morning, we were dispatched 
twice before noon to attend to her needs and the last one we found her in bed where she had a bowel 
movement and had been very messy.  The crew didn’t hesitate to jump in there and treat her with 
respect while getting her ready for transport to the hospital.  The patient was taken from her bed and 
put in the shower to clean her up before transporting her to the hospital and attempting to salvage her 
dignity in which the Lifeline crew was very grateful and impressed with our bedside manner.  These 
types of calls seem overwhelming, however it is always the type of incident that proves our value and 
our pride in caring for this community.  I wanted to pass this along for record but to also inform you that 
we have some big hearts in our organization and I’m proud to be a part of it. 
  
Professionally, 
Rob Zazueta 
Captain/ Paramedic 
  

 
 

Page 29 of 126



P
a
g
e
 3

0
 o

f 1
2
6



P
a
g
e
 3

1
 o

f 
1
2
6



 
 
 
 

 

21 June 2016  Page | 1  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL YAVAPAI AND CHINO VALLEY FIRE DISTRICTS’  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Chief’s Report 
By Fire Chief Freitag 
 
As of this board meeting we are less than two weeks away from the official start of Central Arizona Fire and 
Medical Authority. It would be a gross understatement to say everyone is working fast and furious to wrap up 
our processes. As to be expected, we hit an occasional road bump that takes a little more time, but we have 
been able to overcome. I would be remiss if I did not recognize our amazing staff for their tireless efforts to pull 
this together. Chief Tharp, his managers and staff have done yeomen’s work with the IGA’s, contracts, finance, 
payroll, and human resource files/processes that had to be updated.  
 
Pioneer Title is finalizing all documentation required for the transfer of real property to CAFMA, with the 
exception of the training facility. As you recall, the training facility is currently a part of the ACE drainage suit 
and cannot be transferred until the suit is resolved. All rolling stock has been transferred through the license 
bureau and will be official July 1st.  
 
Signs at the stations and on the apparatus have been slowly changing over. I do not have a definitive date for 
completion, but should be by August. All uniforms have been issued, so as of 0800 July 1st all employees will be 
required to wear the CAFMA branded uniforms. No CVFD or CYFD uniforms are allowed after that date. Chief 
Bliss and his staff have done a tremendous amount of work to ensure everything in Planning and Logistics 
remains on track.  
 
Policies and SOG’s remain a work in progress however we have been able to update those deemed priority 1 
and 2 on time. While this is an accomplishment, Policies and SOG’s will remain manuals that are under constant 
review. We will have the updated manuals for the CAFMA board at the July meeting. Until then, we will 
continue working under the joint policies which will be converted to CAFMA. We are grateful to Operations 
Chief Polacek and his personnel for all of their efforts during this transition.   
 
The Strategic Planning committee has completed their work for next fiscal year and will present the completed 
document at the meeting on June 21st. We feel the document is comprehensive and holds true to our Mission, 
Vision and Values as set forth in the Compass. The Strategic plan will be before the CAFMA board only for 
approval; however it is available to all board members. Our committee was comprised of both internal and 
external stake holders and should reflect the communities we serve.  
 
I have negotiated with Fain group on a piece of property in back of Stoneridge at the end of Old Black Canyon 
Highway just as the black top ends on the North side of the road. The CYFD board had approved the purchase of 
the property as part of this fiscal year’s budget for the purposes of a future fire station. Mr. Ron Fain and I have 
tentatively agreed to a purchase price, pending board approval, well below our budgeted amount. We did have 
an engineer design a layout on the property utilizing Station 50 as a foot print to ensure we purchased the right 
amount of dirt for our needs. The layout is included with the purchase agreement in the CYFD and CAFMA 
board packets. If approved, we will open escrow as CYFD and close as CAFMA.  
 
The Chino Bond has closed and monies deposited. Domenic will begin working with the truck committee after 
the first of the fiscal year to spec the new Type 1 and 3 engines to be purchased for Battalion 6 with bond 
proceeds.  
 

Page 32 of 126



 
 
 
 

 

21 June 2016  Page | 2  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL YAVAPAI AND CHINO VALLEY FIRE DISTRICTS’  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

We continue to meet with the labor group monthly. They have been very helpful in moving CAFMA forward and 
continue to be committed to our success.  
 
The City of Prescott has approved their tentative budget. They have continued to fund current staffing and 
hope for approval of their SAFER Grant. This means that it is unlikely we will see any additional station closures. 
Additionally, we have just completed a joint written test for new firefighters. Prescott has been approved to 
hire for three vacancies which will aid in decreasing their brownout issues. We also have three immediate 
openings and will hire once our process is complete. The openings are not related to the positions lost in B6. 
We will remain short those three positions until we can project sustainable revenues enough to replace them. 
The plan is to seek a SAFER Grant, possibly in fiscal 17/18.  
 
Per some requests from our last board meetings related to budgeting and PRCC, those that requested have 
been sent copies of the current agreements between Prescott and our organizations. Nick is reviewing the 
document as well, and we have been visiting with our partners about possible options related to the IGA going 
forward.  
  

Page 33 of 126



 
 
 
 

 

21 June 2016  Page | 3  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL YAVAPAI AND CHINO VALLEY FIRE DISTRICTS’  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Administration  
By Assistant Chief Tharp 
 
We are in the final push for completing the myriad of tasks in transitioning to CAFMA. For the vast majority of 
the issues, we are either complete or at 90%, however, we are still obtaining benefit forms, inputting 
information into our accounting and HR software program, and beta testing payroll. We are also working with 
Stephen Crandall to look at the end of the year accounting practices for the Chino Valley and Central Yavapai 
Fire Districts transitioning funds and accounts (Accounts Payable and Accounts Receivable) to CAFMA. This 
process will obviously continue beyond July 1, but we are ensuring that we have a solid foundation for audit 
and accounting practices for the inaugural year of CAFMA.  
 
We have been notified that the Transwestern Pipeline has sought another lawsuit against the Department of 
Revenue for invalid assessment of its utility. If you remember, the last time this was brought forward, the State 
of Arizona lost the lawsuit and the CYFD had its levy reduced by over $46,000 in one year. The Yavapai County 
Attorney has given notice that there is another lawsuit for the 2016 Tax assessment and if supported, will result 
in another reduction of levy to the CYFD of just under $25,000. While the Yavapai County Attorney emphasizes 
that “the Department of Revenue is confident that its valuation is well supported”, they wanted to give us due 
notice that we may be facing a withholding of these valuable revenues.  
 
It was interesting to attend the last Arizona Fire Districts Association (AFDA) board meeting in Glendale. The 
conversation was far and above positive in relationship to the successful legislative year and positive impacts 
that it will have on fire districts. Those statutory changes include Fire District Assistance Tax (FDAT) reform -
allowing modification of FDAT to be cumulative for two (or more) merging or consolidating fire districts, 
“Prompt Pay” for Wildland reimbursement, and PSRPS reform of the current plan and future plan. One of the 
surprising notes was the $3.25 Tax Cap Override. While this issue was discussed as a stop gap (and a very short 
term solution) for Fire Districts to obtain a voter override of $3.50 for 5 years, many discussed that it still did 
not alleviate the long term strangle hold of the effects of Proposition 117. And in fact, there were two more 
organizations that stated they would be at the $3.25 cap this upcoming fiscal year. Superstition Fire and 
Medical, which has an annual budget of $12,688,576 is one of the two and they will be asking for the override 
in November. I point this out not to disparage Chief Bourgeois or that organization of 8 stations, but to bring to 
light that the revenue issues of fire districts is throughout the state and affects small fire districts and large fire 
districts. We discussed having a task force meeting with the Arizona Tax Research Association (ATRA) and other 
key players (Professional Firefighters Association) to discuss the funding limitations of fire districts.  
 
Finally, we met with Ashton Tiffany regarding the possible set up of the Worker’s Compensation Pool to be 
effective July 1st. With the short time frame and premium deviations that were given from CopperPoint, a few 
organizations felt that the July 1st date was too aggressive and did not provide enough time to educate the fire 
board members and other fire district organizations about this risk pool. All expressed their dedication to the 
future of the risk pool and a future date is July 1, 2017. This will provide additional time to educate, recruit 
organizations and set up the pool for a solid future. While some may see short term savings due to CopperPoint 
“buying” their loyalty for another year, we are looking for long term, sustainable, premium control and much 
better service. Ashton Tiffany guarantees those items and encourages us to discuss and research school districts 
across Arizona, because their risk pool 20 years ago is where the fire districts are today. We will keep you 
apprised of the progress.    

Page 34 of 126



 
 
 
 

 

21 June 2016  Page | 4  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL YAVAPAI AND CHINO VALLEY FIRE DISTRICTS’  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Fire Prevention 
By Fire Marshal Chase 
 
Construction: 

A second submittal of building plans for the Crossroads apartments were received.  These will be a 96 unit 
complex near the Kia Dealership and the Terraces on Glassford Hill. 

Plans were reviewed for a 248 unit storage facility to be located on 2.7 acres in the Dells. 

Little Dippers Ice Cream Shop opened up next to Arturo’s Mexican food on Hwy. 89 in Chino Valley. 

A to Z Home Center opened up on Hwy. 89 in the building where Hunts Building Center once occupied. 

A business called Select Automotive on Hwy 89 is under review with the Town of Chino Valley. 

Chik-Fil-A will be breaking ground soon in the Crossroads area at 5773 E. Hwy 69. 

Progress on Dutch Brothers Coffee at 5963 E. Hwy 69 is coming along. 

Earnhardt VW should be breaking ground soon at 5582 E. Market St. 

We just provided an underground inspection on La-Z-Boy at 5584 E. Hwy. 69. 

Bingham Tractor Supply should be breaking ground soon at 10123 E. Hwy. 69. 

We’re working with Oasis Church located at 200 Hideaway Ln. in upper blue hills on their fire pump that will be 
installed within the next couple of months.   

General: 

We have been providing annual inspections at the local camps in our area.  Most have had some minor 
violations that have been fixed in a timely manner. 

May 25th Board Member Packard and I attended the Prescott Valley Economic Development Foundation 
quarterly breakfast. 

Fire Inspector Dowdy and Firefighter Tom Muniz attended the fire inspector 2 class held in Flagstaff. 

We have been very busy over the past couple of months with defensible space property assessments.  

Fire Inspector Ayars participated in the “One less spark, one less wildfire” campaign held at Sunset Point on 
May 27th. 

Assistant Fire Marshal Smith has been working with the community of Dewey/Humboldt on their firewise 
efforts. 

I attended the National Fire Academy in Emmetsburg MD the first week of May; it was a great educational 
experience. 

Fire Inspector Dowdy participated in the Fire OPS 101 class and said it was a great experience. 

Page 35 of 126



 
 
 
 

 

21 June 2016  Page | 5  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL YAVAPAI AND CHINO VALLEY FIRE DISTRICTS’  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

Administrative Assistant Teresa Frawley has been an asset in the division and has been working with Chief Abel 
on CAFMA personnel certifications. 

Thank you to Chiefs Freitag and Tharp for attending the annual PV Team Up to Clean Up event and cooking hot 
dogs for the participants. 

As a reminder, burn permits are now valid for the calendar year that they are issued.  Several agencies have 
moved to the annual burn permits including CYFD, CVFD, PFD, Williamson Valley Fire District, Groom Creek Fire 
District and Walker Fire.  The preferred way to obtain a permit is online. 

I met with the Principals from Del Rio and Heritage Elementary Schools in Chino Valley regarding the Fire Pal 
program and both were excited to get his program in their schools. 

Events attended/requested by CAFMA: 

5/7 P.V. Team Up to Clean Up    Chiefs Freitag and Tharp 

5/14 Operation Kidsafe Free digital Fingerprinting Event Engine 51 

5/17 Field day water spray-Bradshaw Mtn Middle School Cancelled due to weather 

5/17 Field day water spray-Lake Valley Elementary School Cancelled due to weather 

5/18 Field day-water spray at Acorn Montessori  Engine 58 

5/24 Safety Week-Gods World    Engine 53 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Fire Prevention Activities 

208  Business Inspections 

10 Construction Inspections/Reviews 

22 Alarm/Sprinkler Testing and Plan Reviews 

3 Fire Investigations 

70 School Programs/Public Talks  

4 Preconstruction Meetings/Plan Reviews 

 f bl    

Page 36 of 126



 
 
 
 

 

21 June 2016  Page | 6  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL YAVAPAI AND CHINO VALLEY FIRE DISTRICTS’  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Operations 
By Assistant Chief Polacek 
 
Wild Land Fire Season is in full swing and we have sent personnel off district as Line Medics. Line medics are a 
two person Crew consisting of an EMT and a Paramedic with ALS gear  that respond with a pickup truck to 
provide care to any  Fire Fighter that gets injured on the fire line. Though we have not seen any large fires, we 
have sent line medics out for five fires around the state and one in West Texas. The area will be looking at 
entering in to Fire Restrictions if the weather remains hot and dry. 
  
We assisted PRCC with Dispatcher testing. They received 40 applications for six positions; ten candidates went 
to the interviews with 9 people passing the test. Those 9 candidates will move on to background checks to 
establish a hiring list for dispatchers at PRCC.  
 
We are also moving forward with the new Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD). The partners have researched three 
different CAD systems and have found that ADSI (the current CAD system) is outdated an antiquated. We are 
continuing to move forward with the research of a new system with no deadlines in place as of yet, though we 
are hopeful that a new system will be in place next year. PRCC is working with Yavapai County about entering 
into an IGA for Code Red. Code Red is an emergency alerting system that contacts people by their phone in the 
event of an emergency. Yavapai County utilizes Code Red and PRCC was using reverse 911 which will no longer 
be available. This will be a good partnership with the County because instead of having two individual systems 
we can rely on one for the area agencies. 
  
Personnel from Battalion 6 and Battalion 3 have been swapping stations and personnel. This has been working 
well and working out any bugs that we may have moving towards July 1 and CAFMA. It appears that we are on 
the right path to make a smooth transition into the new organization. 
 
 
  

Page 37 of 126



 
 
 
 

 

21 June 2016  Page | 7  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL YAVAPAI AND CHINO VALLEY FIRE DISTRICTS’  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Planning and Logistics 
By Assistant Chief Bliss 
 
The activities related to changing to CAFMA have continued.  Michael Freeman has moved all data into one 
version of FIREHOUSE which is the records management system that both departments have used for recording 
training, business inspections, and fire hydrant information.  Fleet has been transitioning the engine labeling to 
Central Arizona and has provided information to Administration for the title changes and the new rate 
agreement with State Forestry.   Tom reports that all of the station signs have been changed. 

Erik and I recently visited the Forest Service Cache at the airport that provides supplies for a large portion of the 
Southwest.  We are constantly looking for additional options to purchase fire related equipment and wanted to 
look into a government source for some of the wildland products.  In the past we were able to purchase 
through the General Services Administration (GSA) which was the government supply point for the Forest 
Service.  GSA discontinued their fire service products in 2014 which forced us to look for other vendors.  The 
Cache manager let us know that the Defense Logistics Agency (DLA) picked up the fire service procurement and 
is now an option for us to consider so we will be looking at that option.   

The regular station maintenance and warehouse activities continue as well as fleet maintenance.  The new 
Hazardous Materials Vehicle has arrived and work is being done to place it in service.   

 
  

Page 38 of 126



 
 
 
 

 

21 June 2016  Page | 8  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL YAVAPAI AND CHINO VALLEY FIRE DISTRICTS’  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Training 
By Training Chief Feddema 
 
As we approach July 1st, we continue to support the effort to standardize the two organizations under CAFMA. 
There are various policies and SOG’s that require adjustment to ensure they accurately reflect CAFMA 
operations. This is not only an excellent time to merge the two organizations but also an opportunity to review 
and scrutinize each policy and SOG. An example of an improvement to a policy and procedure has been the 
newly adjusted Training Nomination Form. The new form is still electronic; however, it was simplified to reduce 
some of the redundancies that were unnecessary in the original design. The new form will allow for the same 
approval process but it will be easier to complete and includes several new questions that will simplify the 
process to accurately account for the costs of training and travel. 

The Fire Ops program has held at CARTA May 20th and 21st. During this program we were able to bring in Dave 
Barrett of Barrett Propane to receive an appreciation award from CARTA. This award was in appreciation for his 
support in time and supplies to help build our vehicle fire training prop. With the partnership that we have been 
able to build with Barrett Propane, we will build this prop at 10% of the cost to purchase it from a 
manufacturer. We have been able to utilize the skills of our CARTA staff to accomplish this project and the Fire 
Ops program was an excellent way to publically express our appreciation for the work Barrett Propane has put 
into the project. Dave Barrett was also able to speak to the group on behalf of his participation in the Fire Ops 
program last year.  

We also held a training officer credentialing course that was sponsor by the ISFSI (International Society of Fire 
Service Instructors). This was a pilot program for the ISFSI and the contract for the course was approved by the 
Fire Board in April. The course attracted students from around Arizona and the southwest. CARTA was chosen 
by the ISFSI, which is based out of Centreville Virginia, to host the course in the southwest. This opportunity 
arose because of the CARTA facility and our participation with the ISFSI for other courses. The course focused 
on training officer development and we had 4 CAFMA Training Officers that attended the training.   

Training at CARTA slows down in the month of June because of the threat of wildland fires; however, work 
continues to be done to prepare for CAFMA and the fall training session. We continue to work on marketing 
courses and the recent Fire Ops program allowed for networking with other business professionals. The 
challenge has not been developing the training; the challenge has been developing quality training that fits 
within the productive time of an engine company. With many other required activities, we continue to look for 
innovative ways to accomplish our required training and development.       
 
 
 

  

Page 39 of 126



 
 
 
 

 

21 June 2016  Page | 9  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL YAVAPAI AND CHINO VALLEY FIRE DISTRICTS’  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Response Report 
By GIS | Records Management Specialist Freeman 

Land Area:  162 sq. miles     Population: 70,701     Fire Stations:  7 Staffed Stations 
 

   Responses in CYFD            Unit Responses 
                 In     Total 
     TOTAL FIRE           District Responses 

BLDG FIRE 1 E50 115 120 
BLDG CONTAINED 1 E51 32 146 
MOBILE HOME/PORTABLE BLDG 0 E53 168 169 
VEHICLE 1 E54 114 114 
BRUSH/GRASS 3 E57 42 48 
OTHER 1 E58 136 140 

Fire is 0.96% of call volume  E59 113 116 
TOTAL EMS 511 T50 1 1 

EMS is 70.19% of call volume 
 

OVERPRESSURE  0  

HAZMAT 10 

SERVICE 109 

GOOD INTENT 76 

FALSE ALARM/OTHER 15 
Other is 28.85% of call volume 

TOTAL # OF CALLS 728 
Residential Fire Loss $100,900  
Vehicle Fire Loss $1,000 

 474 EMS 
Calls in Town of Prescott Valley 468 57 Public Service 
Calls in Town of Dewey-Humboldt 37 46 Cancelled en Route 
Calls in rest of District 223 23 Assist Invalid 
Calls out of District 1 19 No Incident Found on Arrival 
    

Average total # of calls per day 23.48  Number of 
Avg fire calls per day 0.23 Station move-ups 
Avg EMS calls per day 16.48 50 62 
Avg all other calls per day 6.77 51 36 

  53 11 
Auto Aid Given 111 54 0 
Auto Aid Received 63 57 5 
Mutual Aid Given 0 58 3 
Mutual Aid Received 0 59 3 

  TOTAL 120 
 

  
    

  

   

   

   

   

Page 40 of 126



TO:  Fire Board 
FROM: Chief Freitag 
DATE:  June 8, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVE RESOLUTION 2016-05 AND FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 FINAL 

BUDGET 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
Approve Resolution 2016-05 and Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Final Budget in the 
amount of $ 3,899,599. 
  
If you have any questions, please call Assistant Chief of Administration Tharp or myself 
at 772-7711. 
  
 



Fiscal Year 2017

Description Page #

Revenue 2

Expense 3

The Chino Valley Fire District Board of Directors has approved

the posting and publication of the Fire District's Tentative Budget

for Fiscal Year 2016-2017 and will hold a Public Hearing to adopt

said budget on June 21, 2016 at the Station 61 meeting room, 

Rd. 3 North, Chino Valley, at 5:00 p.m.

Draft Budget  (April 2016)

Table of Contents

Page 41 of 126



Draft

Budget Budget Budget Actual Budget

FY 14 FY 15 FY 16 - FY 17 Variance Variance (%)

Total District Budget 4,313,370            4,169,152              3,899,599              (269,553)               -6.47%

Carryover (55,000)                  -                     (55,000)                 -100.00%

Revenue:

Grants:

5260 Fire Act Grant -                -                   -                    -

5430 Grant - FEMA - SAFER -                -                   -                    #DIV/0!

Total Grants -                -                   -                     -                 -                     -                    -

4200 FDAT (313,900)              (313,900)                (313,900)                -                    0.00%

Other:

4000/4100 Real Estate Tax

4001 Fire Protection Contracts (59,000)                (59,000)                  -                     (59,000)                 -100.00%

1200 Capital Reserve Account (493,810)              (85,000)                  (36,000)                  (49,000)                 -9.92%

4800 Off-District Fires (150,000)              (150,000)                -                     (150,000)               -100.00%

4900 Interest Income (6,000)                  (6,000)                    -                     (6,000)                   -100.00%

5100 Miscellaneous Income -                    -

5200 64 Lease (7,200)                  (7,200)                    -                     (7,200)                   -100.00%

5350 Rebates / Refunds (2,000)                  (2,000)                    (2,000)                    -                    0.00%

5400 CYFD JMA Expense Reimbursement (10,000)                (10,000)                  -                     (10,000)                 -100.00%

Total Other -                (728,010)              (319,200)                -                 (38,000)                  (281,200)               -88.10%

Total Non-Levy Revenues (728,010)              (374,200)                -                 (38,000)                  (336,200)               -89.85%

Tax Levy Requirement -                3,271,460            3,481,052              3,547,699              66,647                  1.91%

Net A.V.(3.0% increase) 104,457,436        107,201,126          109,186,841          1,985,715             1.85%

Actual/Estimated Tax Rate $3.1500 $3.2472 $3.2492 $0.0020 0.06%

Chino Valley Fire District

Revenue Budget FY 2017

Page 42 of 126



General Fund CAFMA Budget Budget

Budget Budget Budget Budget Variance Variance

FY 14 FY 15 FY 16 FY 17 $$ %

Retained Funds

6400.1 Audit &Accounting 15,000 15,000 2000 (13,000)                -86.67%

6405.1 Other Professional Services
Fire Board Election 5,000 -                   21,000                21,000                 -

6410.1 Legal Services - routine 30,000 30,000 5,000                  (25,000)                -83.33%

6441.1 Fire Board Expenses 900 1,000 1,000                  -                           0.00%

-                           -

-                           -

Total Retained Funds 50,900          46,000         29,000                (17,000)                -36.96%

Contingency 57,713          110,819       20,000                (90,819)                -81.95%

Fire Authority Funding

6700.1 Fire Authority Funding -                   -                   3,850,599           -

Total Expense Budget 3,899,599           -

Chino Valley Fire District

Draft Budget FY 2017 (6-2016)

Page 43 of 126



TO:  Fire Board 
FROM: Chief Freitag 
DATE:  June 8, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVE FISCAL CERTIFICATION FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 

BUDGET 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
Approve certification for Fiscal Year 2016-2017 
 
If you have any questions, please call Assistant Chief of Administration Tharp or myself 
at 772-7711. 
  
 



P
a
g
e
 4

4
 o

f 
1
2
6



TO:  Fire Board 
FROM: Chief Freitag 
DATE:  June 8, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVE FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 BOND REPAYMENT TAX RATE 
 
For the Fiscal Year 2016-2017, the Chino Valley Fire District would like to levy $445,438 
in bond tax revenues. The revenues would be applied to the Bond Debt Servicing for 
the GADA 2006(B) bond repayment obligation of $234,481, the 2016(B) bond refunding 
obligation of $168,667, and new 2016 bond issuance obligation of $42,290. However, 
this bond debt obligation would be reduced by $29,000 due to retained Bond Debt 
Service Funds that are currently held in this account. The resulting levy requirement is 
$416,438 for a tax rate of $0.3813 (reduction of $0.0292 from prior year).  
 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
Approve Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Bond Tax Rate of $0.3813 
 
If you have any questions, please call Assistant Chief of Administration Tharp or myself 
at 772-7711. 
  
 



TO:  Fire Board 
FROM: Chief Freitag 
DATE:  June 8, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVE CAPITAL RESERVE FUND TRANSFER TO CAFMA IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $2,576,517.78 TO BE COMPLETED PRIOR TO JUNE 30, 
2016 

 
“As discussed with the respective Central Yavapai and Chino Valley Fire District Board 
of Directors, the assets and liabilities will be transferred to the Central Arizona Fire and 
Medical Authority. As provided by ARS 48-805.01 and outlined in the Joint Powers 
Authority agreement Section III Paragraph E. and Section IV Paragraph A., the cash 
assets of the respective Districts would be transferred to the new fire authority. As of 
May 31st, 2016, the balance of the CYFD Capital Reserve Fund is $6,508,697.35 and 
the balance of the CVFD Capital Reserve Fund is $2,576,517.78. These cash assets 
need to be transferred to the Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority prior to July 1, 
2016 to enable the fire authority to capitalize and continue organizations without using a 
line of credit from Yavapai County for warrants issued after the July 1st effective date.  
 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
Approve the transfer of $2,576,517.78 from the CVFD Capital Reserve Fund 
(account #6-65840-0000) to the Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority 
General Fund (account #6-67340-5000) 
 
If you have any questions, please call Assistant Chief of Administration Tharp or myself 
at 772-7711. 
  
 



TO:  Fire Board 
FROM: Chief Freitag 
DATE:  June 8, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVE 2012 INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE AMENDMENTS AND 

RESOLUTION 2016-02 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
Approve 2012 International Fire Code Amendments and Resolution 2016-02 
 
If you have any questions, please call Assistant Chief of Administration Tharp or myself 
at 772-7711. 
  
 



P
a
g
e
 4

5
 o

f 
1
2
6



  

1 
 

  Chino Valley Fire District 2012 International Fire Code 
Amendments 

 
 

CHAPTER 1  
 ADMINISTRATION 

 
Section 101.1 Title is amended as follows: 
These regulations shall be known as the Fire Code of Chino Valley Fire District, 
hereinafter referred to as “this code”. 
 
Section 105.6.2 Amusement building is amended as follows: 
Amusement building and events.  An operational permit is required for any 
amusement building or event. 
 
Section 105.6.23 Hot work operations is amended as follows: 
4. Hot work, including grinding, conducted within a wildfire risk area during burn 
restrictions. 
 
Section 108.2 Limitations of authority is amended by adding: 
Rulings by the Board of Appeals shall be binding upon the Fire District and the 
appellants.  All rulings made by the Board of Appeals shall be only for the appellant 
and shall not be intended as a general change in this Code. 
 
Section 109.4 Violation penalties is amended as follows: 
Persons who violate a provision of this code or fail to comply with any of the 
requirements thereof, or who shall erect, install, alter, repair or perform work in 
violation of the approved construction documents or directive of the fire code official, 
or of a permit or certificate obtained under provisions of this Code, shall be found in 
violation and subject to penalties designated by the jurisdiction having authority. 
 
Section 111.4 Failure to comply is amended as follows: 
Any person who continues any work after having been served with a stop work 
order, except such work as that person is directed to perform to remove a violation 
or unsafe condition, shall be found in violation and subject to penalties designated 
by  the jurisdiction having authority. 

 
CHAPTER 5  

FIRE SERVICE FEATURES 
 
Section 505.1 Address identification is amended as follows: 
New and existing buildings shall have approved address numbers, building numbers 
or building identification placed in a position that is plainly legible and visible from the 
street or road fronting the property.  These numbers shall contrast with their 
background.  Address numbers shall be Arabic numbers or alphabetical letters.  
Numbers shall be a minimum of 6 inches high with a minimum stroke width of 0.5 
inch.  Larger numbers may be required by the fire code official to facilitate 
emergency response. 



  

2 
 

 
Section 505.2.1 Conflicting road names is amended by adding a new section as 
follows: 
Newly assigned street or road names shall not conflict with existing names and shall 
be approved by the fire code official. 
 

CHAPTER 9 
FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS 

 
Section 901.2 Construction documents is amended by adding the following: 
Automatic sprinkler system plans shall be submitted bearing a review certification 
and signature of a minimum level III NICET Certified Engineering Technician or 
Arizona registrant.  Fire sprinkler plans for high-piled combustible storage 
occupancies shall require a registered fire protection engineer stamp.  Fire alarm 
system plans shall be submitted bearing a review certification and signature of a 
minimum level III NICET Technician or Arizona registrant. 
 
Section 901.6.2 Records is amended to read as follows: 
Records of all system inspections, tests and maintenance required by the referenced 
standards shall be maintained on the premises for a minimum of three years and 
reports of system deficiencies shall be forwarded to the authority having jurisdiction 
within 10 business days. 
 
Section 903.2.1.1 Group A-1 is amended by changing item 1 to read as follows: 
1.The fire area is 5,000 square feet or greater. 
 
Section 903.2.1.3 Group A-3 is amended by changing item 1 to read as follows: 
1.The fire area is 5,000 square feet or greater.  
 
Section 903.2.1.4 Group A-4 is amended by changing item 1 to read as follows: 
1.  The fire area is 5,000 square feet or greater. 
 
Section 903.2.3 Group E is amended as follows: 
An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided for all Group E occupancies.  

Exception 1: A day care facility with less than 11 children in a private                                                   
residence. 
Exception 2: In group E occupancies less than 5,000 s.f. where a municipal 
water supply is not available; if every classroom has at least one exterior exit 
door at ground level and an NFPA 72 compliant automatic fire alarm system 
installed throughout, fire sprinklers may be omitted if approved by the fire 
code official. 

 
Section 903.2.4 Group F-1 is amended as follows: 
Section 903.2.4 Group F An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided 
throughout all buildings containing Group F occupancies where one of the following 
conditions exists: 

1. The fire area is 5,000 square feet or greater. 
2. The fire area is located more than two stories above grade. 



  

3 
 

3. A Group F occupancy used for the manufacture of upholstered furniture or 
mattresses exceeding 2,500 square feet. 

 
Section 903.2.6 Group I is amended by changing exceptions 3 and 4 to read as 
follows: 

3.  An automatic sprinkler system is not required where day care facilities are at                                       
the level of exit discharge, where every room where care is provided has a 
least one exterior exit door and where the fire area is less than 5,000 square 
feet. 

     4. In buildings where Group I-4 day care is provided on levels other than the
 level of exit discharge, an automatic fire sprinkler system shall be installed 
 through all levels of the building. 
 
Section 903.2.7 Group M is amended by changing items 1-3 to read as follows: 

1. The Group M fire area is 5,000 square feet or greater. 
2. The Group M fire area is located more than two stories above grade. 
3. The combined area of all Group M fire areas on all floors, including any 

mezzanines, exceeds 5,000 square feet. 
 
Section 903.2.7.1 High-piled storage is amended by adding: 
The automatic fire sprinkler system shall be designed by a fire protection engineer.   
 
Section 903.2.8 Group R is amended by adding exceptions 1 and 2 to read as 
follows: 
 Exception 1. Group R-3 less than 5,000 square feet unless more than two 
stories above grade. The calculated area shall include all livable and unfinished 
space, the area of any attached garage, and concealed or accessible spaces 
intended for storage use and/or future living space. All attached roofs and overhangs 
greater than 4 feet in width are included in the calculated area. 
 Exception 2.  Group R-3 care facilities within a dwelling unit for five or fewer 
persons. 
 
Section 903.2.9 Group S-1 is amended by changing Group S-1 to Group S and 
changing items 1, 2 and 3 to read as follows: 
Section 903.2.9 Group S 

1. The Group S fire area is 5,000 square feet or greater. 
2. The Group S fire area is located more than two stories above grade. 
3. The combined area of all Group S-1 fire areas on all floors, including any 

mezzanines, exceeds 5,000 square feet. 
 
Section 903.2.9.1 Repair Garages is amended by changing items 1 and 2 to read 
as follows: 

1. Buildings having two or more stories above grade plane, including 
basements, with a fire area containing a repair garage exceeding 5,000 
square feet.  

2. Buildings no more than one story above grade plane, with a fire area 
containing a repair garage exceeding 5,000 square feet. 

 



  

4 
 

Section 903.2.10 Group S-2 enclosed parking garages is amended by changing 
item 1 to read as follows: 

1. Where the fire area of the enclosed parking garage exceeds 5,000 square 
feet. 

 
Section 903.2.13 Group B is an added section: 
An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided throughout all buildings containing a 
Group B occupancy where one of the following conditions exists: 

1. Where a Group B fire area is 5,000 square feet or greater. 
2. Where a Group B fire area is located more than two stories above grade. 

 
Section 903.2.14 Group U is an added section: 
An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided throughout all buildings containing a 
Group U occupancy 5,000 square feet or greater as determined by the fire code 
official.  
 
Section 903.3.1.1.1 Exempt Locations is amended by deleting item number 4. 
 
Section 903.3.1.3.1 Garages is amended by adding the following section: 
Sprinklers are required in all attached garages and workshops. 
 
Section 903.3.5 Water supplies is hereby amended by adding: 
The water data for hydraulic calculations shall be based upon 85 percent of the 
available water supply as determined by flow test information.  
 

CHAPTER 11 
CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS FOR EXISTING BUILDINGS 

 
Section 1103.5 Sprinkler systems is amended by adding the following 
subsections: 
 
Section 1103.5.3 Building Addition.  A sprinkler system is required throughout the 
building when any addition increases the total floor area to 5,000 square feet or 
greater. 
 Exception:  R-3 Occupancies. 
 
Section 1103.5.4 Change of Use.  A sprinkler system is required throughout the 
building when any change of use or occupancy occurs to a portion of the building to 
a more hazardous occupancy or as determined by the Fire Code Official.  
 
Section 1103.5.5 Group A-1, A-3, and A-4 Addition.  A sprinkler system is 
required throughout the building when any addition to existing assembly 
occupancies increases the occupant load to more than 300.  
 
Section 1103.5.6 Group A-2 Addition.  A sprinkler system is required throughout 
the building when any addition to existing assembly occupancies increases the 
occupant load to more than 100.  
 



  

5 
 

Section 1103.5.7 Group E.  A sprinkler system is required throughout the building 
for Group E occupancies. 
 Exception 1: Child day care facilities for more than five but no more than 10  
 children in a single-family residence. 
 

Exception 2: In group E occupancies less than 5,000 s.f. where a municipal 
water supply is not available; if every classroom has at least one exterior exit 
door at ground level and an NFPA 72 compliant automatic fire alarm system 
installed throughout, fire sprinklers may be omitted if approved by the fire 
code official. 

 
Section 1103.5.8 Group R-3 Care Facilities. A sprinkler system is required 
throughout the building in a single-family residence wherein six or more persons 
receive care. 
 
Section 1103.5.9 Vacant Buildings. A sprinkler system is required throughout the 
building when any A, E, or I occupancy that has been vacant for more than 18 
months requests to resume as the same occupancy classification. 
 
Section 1103.5.10 Fire Wall Breech. A sprinkler system is required throughout the 
building when any modification or alteration to an existing building, with a total floor 
area of 5,000 square feet or greater, breeches or removes a required fire rated wall 
assembly. 
 
Section 1103.7 Fire Alarm Systems is amended by adding the following 
subsections: 
Section 1103.7.8 Non-Monitored Sprinkler System.  A fire alarm system shall be 
installed throughout the building when an existing, non-monitored fire sprinkler 
system is modified by 20 or more sprinkler heads. 
 
Section 1103.7.9 Sprinkled Building Fire Alarm Requirement.  An approved fire 
alarm system shall be installed in existing buildings when a fire sprinkler system is 
provided.   

 
CHAPTER 56 

EXPLOSIVES AND FIREWORKS 
 
Section 5601.2.4 Financial Responsibility is amended as follows: 
Before a permit is issued, as required by Section 5601.2, the applicant shall file with 
the jurisdiction a corporate surety bond in the principal sum of $1,000,000 (one 
million dollars) or a public liability insurance policy for the same amount, for the 
purpose of the payment of all damages to persons or property which arise from, or 
are caused by, the conduct of any act authorized by the permit upon which any 
judicial judgment results.  The fire code official is authorized to specify a greater or 
lesser amount when, in his or her opinion, conditions at the location of use indicate a 
greater or lesser amount is required.  Government entities shall be exempt from this 
bond requirement. 
 
Section 5601.2.4.1 Blasting is amended as follows: 



  

6 
 

Before approval to do blasting is issued, the applicant for approval shall file a bond 
or submit a certificate of insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 (one million dollars) 
in each case to indemnify the jurisdiction against any and all damages arising from 
permitted blasting. 
 
Section 5601.2.4.2 Fireworks Display is amended as follows: 
Before approval for a display is issued, the permit holder shall furnish a bond or 
certificate of insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 (one million dollars) per 
occurrence for the payment of all potential damages to a person or persons or to 
property by reason of the permitted display, and arising from any acts of the permit 
holder, the agent, employees or subcontractors to indemnify the jurisdiction against 
any and all damages arising from permitted fireworks displays. 
 

CHAPTER 80 
REFERENCED STANDARDS 

Part VI-Referenced Standards is amended to add the following: 
Add the document known as Central Yavapai Fire District “Fire Protection 
Standards” for Builders, Developers, Engineers & Architects. 

 
APPENDIX A 

 
Section A101.2 Membership is amended as follows: 
The membership of the board shall consist of five voting members that have the 
qualifications established by this section and reside within the boundaries of the Fire 
District.  In the event that it is not practical to find members as required by this 
section, the Fire Code official reserves the right to relax the qualifications as to 
create a valid professional board to serve this jurisdiction.  Prospective members 
shall apply to the Fire Marshal of the jurisdiction, subject to confirmation by a 
majority vote of the Fire District Fire Board.  Members shall serve without 
remuneration or compensation, and shall be removed from office prior to the end of 
their appointed terms only for cause. 
 
Section A101.3 Terms of Office is deleted. 
 
Section A101.3.1 Initial Appointments is deleted. 
 
Section A101.5 Secretary of Board is amended as follows: 
The fire code official or his designee shall act as Secretary of the Board and shall 
keep a detailed record of all its proceedings, which shall set forth the reasons for its 
decisions, the vote of each member, the absence of a member, and any failure of a 
member to vote. 
 

APPENDIX B 
 

Table B105.1 Minimum Required Fire Flow and Flow Duration for Buildings is 
amended by adding Footnote c as follows: 
Footnote c: In special circumstances, where the municipal or rural water supply will 
not provide the required 1,500 gpm, the fire code official may accept a lesser 
amount.  This amount shall never be less than 1,000 gpm.  



  

7 
 

 
APPENDIX D 

 
Section D103.2 Grade is amended as follows: 
Fire apparatus access roads shall not exceed 12 percent grade. 
The exception is deleted and replaced as follows: 
Exception:  The fire code official may permit the access road grade to increase, but 
shall not exceed 15 percent if fire sprinkler protection is installed. 
 
Section D103.3 Turning Radius is amended as follows: 
The minimum turning radius shall be 28’ (twenty eight feet) inside and 50’ (fifty feet) 
outside diameter for all fire department access roads and parking lots. 
 

 
 



  

1 
 

Chino Valley Fire District 
 

Resolution No. 16-02 
 

A FORMAL RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CHINO VALLEY  FIRE 
DISTRICT AMENDING THE 2012 EDITION OF THE INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Chino Valley Fire District did, on or about, September 18, 2014, 
adopt the 2012 International Fire Code together with certain amendments thereto (IFC); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Chino Valley Fire District is authorized, pursuant to A.R.S. 48-805 
(B)(6) to adopt a nationally recognized fire code and amend or revise the adopted code. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Chino Valley Fire District wishes to amend the 2012 Edition of the 
International Fire Code to provide for a more uniform practice and enforcement of the Fire 
Code, consistent and together with various other enforcement agencies with whom Chino 
Valley Fire District may interact;  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved as follows: 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED that the Chino Valley Fire District hereby amends the 2012 
Edition of the International Fire Code (IFC), Chapter 9, Section 903.2.1.1 Group A-1; 
Chapter 9, Section 903.2.1.3 Group A-3; Chapter 9, Section 903.2.1.4 Group A-4; Chapter 
9, Section 903.2.3 Group E , Exception 2; Chapter 9, Section 903.2.4 Group F, Item 1; 
Chapter 9, Section 903.2.4 Group F, Item 3; Chapter 9, Section 903.2.6 Group I, Exception 
3; Chapter 9, Section 903.2.7 Group M, Item 1; Chapter 9, Section 903.2.7 Group M, Item 3; 
Chapter 9, Section 903.2.8 Group R, Exception 1; Chapter 9, Section 903.2.8 Group R, 
Exception 2; Chapter 9, Section 903.2.9 Group S, Item 1; Chapter 9, Section 903.2.9 Group 
S, Item 3; Chapter 9, Section 903.2.9.1 Repair Garages, Item 1; Chapter 9, Section 
903.2.9.1 Repair Garages, Item 2; Chapter 9, Section 903.2.10 Group S-2, Item 1; Chapter 
9, Section 903.2.13 Group B, Item 1; Chapter 9, Section 903.2.14 Group U; Chapter 11, 
Section 1103.5.3 Building Addition; Chapter 11, Section 1103.5.7 Group E, Exception 2; 
Chapter 11, Section 1103.5.8 Group R-3, Care Facilities; Chapter 11, Section 1103.5.10 
Fire Wall Breech. 
 
 FUTHER RESOLVED, that if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of 
this resolution is for any reason held to be unconstitutional; such decision shall not affect the 
validity of the remaining portions of this resolution. 
 
 FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution and the rules, regulations, provisions, 
amendments, requirements, orders and matters established and adopted hereby shall take 
effect and be in full force and effect from and after the date of its approval. 
 
  
 RESOLVED and ADOPTED this _____ day of _____________, 20_____ . 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________________ 
Board Chairman 
 
 



  

2 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________________________________ 
Board Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 



  

1 
 

  Chino Valley Fire District 2012 International Fire Code 
Amendments 

 
 

CHAPTER 1  
 ADMINISTRATION 

 
Section 101.1 Title is amended as follows: 
These regulations shall be known as the Fire Code of Chino Valley Fire District, 
hereinafter referred to as “this code”. 
 
Section 105.6.2 Amusement building is amended as follows: 
Amusement building and events.  An operational permit is required for any 
amusement building or event. 
 
Section 105.6.23 Hot work operations is amended as follows: 
4. Hot work, including grinding, conducted within a wildfire risk area during burn 
restrictions. 
 
Section 108.2 Limitations of authority is amended by adding: 
Rulings by the Board of Appeals shall be binding upon the Fire District and the 
appellants.  All rulings made by the Board of Appeals shall be only for the appellant 
and shall not be intended as a general change in this Code. 
 
Section 109.4 Violation penalties is amended as follows: 
Persons who violate a provision of this code or fail to comply with any of the 
requirements thereof, or who shall erect, install, alter, repair or perform work in 
violation of the approved construction documents or directive of the fire code official, 
or of a permit or certificate obtained under provisions of this Code, shall be found in 
violation and subject to penalties designated by the jurisdiction having authority. 
 
Section 111.4 Failure to comply is amended as follows: 
Any person who continues any work after having been served with a stop work 
order, except such work as that person is directed to perform to remove a violation 
or unsafe condition, shall be found in violation and subject to penalties designated 
by  the jurisdiction having authority. 

 
CHAPTER 5  

FIRE SERVICE FEATURES 
 
Section 505.1 Address identification is amended as follows: 
New and existing buildings shall have approved address numbers, building numbers 
or building identification placed in a position that is plainly legible and visible from the 
street or road fronting the property.  These numbers shall contrast with their 
background.  Address numbers shall be Arabic numbers or alphabetical letters.  
Numbers shall be a minimum of 6 inches high with a minimum stroke width of 0.5 
inch.  Larger numbers may be required by the fire code official to facilitate 
emergency response. 



  

2 
 

 
Section 505.2.1 Conflicting road names is amended by adding a new section as 
follows: 
Newly assigned street or road names shall not conflict with existing names and shall 
be approved by the fire code official. 
 

CHAPTER 9 
FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS 

 
Section 901.2 Construction documents is amended by adding the following: 
Automatic sprinkler system plans shall be submitted bearing a review certification 
and signature of a minimum level III NICET Certified Engineering Technician or 
Arizona registrant.  Fire sprinkler plans for high-piled combustible storage 
occupancies shall require a registered fire protection engineer stamp.  Fire alarm 
system plans shall be submitted bearing a review certification and signature of a 
minimum level III NICET Technician or Arizona registrant. 
 
Section 901.6.2 Records is amended to read as follows: 
Records of all system inspections, tests and maintenance required by the referenced 
standards shall be maintained on the premises for a minimum of three years and 
reports of system deficiencies shall be forwarded to the authority having jurisdiction 
within 10 business days. 
 
Section 903.2.1.1 Group A-1 is amended by changing item 1 to read as follows: 
1.The fire area is 7,5005,000 square feet or greater. 
 
Section 903.2.1.3 Group A-3 is amended by changing item 1 to read as follows: 
1.The fire area is 7,500 5,000 square feet or greater.  
 
Section 903.2.1.4 Group A-4 is amended by changing item 1 to read as follows: 
1.  The fire area is 7,5005,000 square feet or greater. 
 
Section 903.2.3 Group E is amended as follows: 
An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided for all Group E occupancies.  

Exception 1: A day care facility with less than 11 children in a private                                                   
residence. 
Exception 2: In group E occupancies less than 5,000 s.f. where a municipal 
water supply is not available; if every classroom has at least one exterior exit 
door at ground level and an NFPA 72 compliant automatic fire alarm system 
installed throughout, fire sprinklers may be omitted if approved by the fire 
code official. 

 
Section 903.2.4 Group F-1 is amended as follows: 
Section 903.2.4 Group F An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided 
throughout all buildings containing Group F occupancies where one of the following 
conditions exists: 

1. The fire area is 7,5005,000 square feet or greater. 
2. The fire area is located more than two stories above grade. 



  

3 
 

3. A Group F occupancy used for the manufacture of upholstered furniture or 
mattresses exceeding 5,0002,500 square feet. 

 
Section 903.2.6 Group I is amended by changing exceptions 3 and 4 to read as 
follows: 

3.  An automatic sprinkler system is not required where day care facilities are at                                       
the level of exit discharge, where every room where care is provided has a 
least one exterior exit door and where the fire area is less than 7,5005,000 
square feet. 

     4. In buildings where Group I-4 day care is provided on levels other than the
 level of exit discharge, an automatic fire sprinkler system shall be installed 
 through all levels of the building. 
 
Section 903.2.7 Group M is amended by changing items 1-3 to read as follows: 

1. The Group M fire area is 7,5005,000 square feet or greater. 
2. The Group M fire area is located more than two stories above grade. 
3. The combined area of all Group M fire areas on all floors, including any 

mezzanines, exceeds 7,5005,000 square feet. 
 
Section 903.2.7.1 High-piled storage is amended by adding: 
The automatic fire sprinkler system shall be designed by a fire protection engineer.   
 
Section 903.2.8 Group R is amended by adding exceptions 1 and 2 to read as 
follows: 
 Exception 1. Group R-3 one and two family dwellings, occupied as single 
family units, less than 7,500 square feet livable space unless more than two stories 
above grade. The calculated area shall include all livable and unfinished space, the 
area of any attached garage, and concealed or accessible spaces intended for 
storage use and/or future living space.  Perimeter decks or outdoor living space is 
not calculated in the 7,500 square feet threshold requirement.Group R-3 less than 
5,000 square feet unless more than two stories above grade. The calculated area 
shall include all livable and unfinished space, the area of any attached garage, and 
concealed or accessible spaces intended for storage use and/or future living space. 
All attached roofs and overhangs greater than 4 feet in width are included in the 
calculated area. 
 Exception 2.  Group R-3 care facilities within a dwelling unit for ten five or 
fewer persons. 
 
Section 903.2.9 Group S-1 is amended by changing Group S-1 to Group S and 
changing items 1, 2 and 3 to read as follows: 
Section 903.2.9 Group S 

1. The Group S fire area is 7,5005,000 square feet or greater. 
2. The Group S fire area is located more than two stories above grade. 
3. The combined area of all Group S-1 fire areas on all floors, including any 

mezzanines, exceeds 7,5005,000 square feet. 
 
Section 903.2.9.1 Repair Garages is amended by changing items 1 and 2 to read 
as follows: 



  

4 
 

1. Buildings having two or more stories above grade plane, including 
basements, with a fire area containing a repair garage exceeding 7,5005,000 
square feet.  

2. Buildings no more than one story above grade plane, with a fire area 
containing a repair garage exceeding 7,5005,000 square feet. 

 
Section 903.2.10 Group S-2 enclosed parking garages is amended by changing 
item 1 to read as follows: 

1. Where the fire area of the enclosed parking garage exceeds 7,5005,000 
square feet. 

 
Section 903.2.13 Group B is an added section: 
An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided throughout all buildings containing a 
Group B occupancy where one of the following conditions exists: 

1. Where a Group B fire area is 7,5005,000 square feet or greater. 
2. Where a Group B fire area is located more than two stories above grade. 

 
Section 903.2.14 Group U is an added section: 
An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided throughout all buildings containing a 
Group U occupancy 7,5005,000 square feet or greater as determined by the fire 
code official.  
 
Section 903.3.1.1.1 Exempt Locations is amended by deleting item number 4. 
 
Section 903.3.1.3.1 Garages is amended by adding the following section: 
Sprinklers are required in all attached garages and workshops. 
 
Section 903.3.5 Water supplies is hereby amended by adding: 
The water data for hydraulic calculations shall be based upon 85 percent of the 
available water supply as determined by flow test information.  
 

CHAPTER 11 
CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS FOR EXISTING BUILDINGS 

 
Section 1103.5 Sprinkler systems is amended by adding the following 
subsections: 
 
Section 1103.5.3 Building Addition.  A sprinkler system is required throughout the 
building when any addition increases the total floor area to 7,5005,000 square feet 
or greater. 
 Exception:  R-3 Occupancies. 
 
Section 1103.5.4 Change of Use.  A sprinkler system is required throughout the 
building when any change of use or occupancy occurs to a portion of the building to 
a more hazardous occupancy or as determined by the Fire Code Official.  
 
Section 1103.5.5 Group A-1, A-3, and A-4 Addition.  A sprinkler system is 
required throughout the building when any addition to existing assembly 
occupancies increases the occupant load to more than 300.  



  

5 
 

 
Section 1103.5.6 Group A-2 Addition.  A sprinkler system is required throughout 
the building when any addition to existing assembly occupancies increases the 
occupant load to more than 100.  
 
Section 1103.5.7 Group E.  A sprinkler system is required throughout the building 
for Group E occupancies. 
 Exception 1: Child day care facilities for more than five but no more than 10  
 children in a single-family residence. 
 

Exception 2: In group E occupancies less than 5,000 s.f. where a municipal 
water supply is not available; if every classroom has at least one exterior exit 
door at ground level and an NFPA 72 compliant automatic fire alarm system 
installed throughout, fire sprinklers may be omitted if approved by the fire 
code official. 

 
Section 1103.5.8 Group R-3 Care Facilities. A sprinkler system is required 
throughout the building in a single-family residence wherein ten six or more persons 
receive care. 
 
Section 1103.5.9 Vacant Buildings. A sprinkler system is required throughout the 
building when any A, E, or I occupancy that has been vacant for more than 18 
months requests to resume as the same occupancy classification. 
 
Section 1103.5.10 Fire Wall Breech. A sprinkler system is required throughout the 
building when any modification or alteration to an existing building, with a total floor 
area of 7,5005,000 square feet or greater, breeches or removes a required fire rated 
wall assembly. 
 
Section 1103.7 Fire Alarm Systems is amended by adding the following 
subsections: 
Section 1103.7.8 Non-Monitored Sprinkler System.  A fire alarm system shall be 
installed throughout the building when an existing, non-monitored fire sprinkler 
system is modified by 20 or more sprinkler heads. 
 
Section 1103.7.9 Sprinkled Building Fire Alarm Requirement.  An approved fire 
alarm system shall be installed in existing buildings when a fire sprinkler system is 
provided.   

 
CHAPTER 56 

EXPLOSIVES AND FIREWORKS 
 
Section 5601.2.4 Financial Responsibility is amended as follows: 
Before a permit is issued, as required by Section 5601.2, the applicant shall file with 
the jurisdiction a corporate surety bond in the principal sum of $1,000,000 (one 
million dollars) or a public liability insurance policy for the same amount, for the 
purpose of the payment of all damages to persons or property which arise from, or 
are caused by, the conduct of any act authorized by the permit upon which any 
judicial judgment results.  The fire code official is authorized to specify a greater or 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"



  

6 
 

lesser amount when, in his or her opinion, conditions at the location of use indicate a 
greater or lesser amount is required.  Government entities shall be exempt from this 
bond requirement. 
 
Section 5601.2.4.1 Blasting is amended as follows: 
Before approval to do blasting is issued, the applicant for approval shall file a bond 
or submit a certificate of insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 (one million dollars) 
in each case to indemnify the jurisdiction against any and all damages arising from 
permitted blasting. 
 
Section 5601.2.4.2 Fireworks Display is amended as follows: 
Before approval for a display is issued, the permit holder shall furnish a bond or 
certificate of insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 (one million dollars) per 
occurrence for the payment of all potential damages to a person or persons or to 
property by reason of the permitted display, and arising from any acts of the permit 
holder, the agent, employees or subcontractors to indemnify the jurisdiction against 
any and all damages arising from permitted fireworks displays. 
 

CHAPTER 80 
REFERENCED STANDARDS 

Part VI-Referenced Standards is amended to add the following: 
Add the document known as Central Yavapai Fire District “Fire Protection 
Standards” for Builders, Developers, Engineers & Architects. 

 
APPENDIX A 

 
Section A101.2 Membership is amended as follows: 
The membership of the board shall consist of five voting members that have the 
qualifications established by this section and reside within the boundaries of the Fire 
District.  In the event that it is not practical to find members as required by this 
section, the Fire Code official reserves the right to relax the qualifications as to 
create a valid professional board to serve this jurisdiction.  Prospective members 
shall apply to the Fire Marshal of the jurisdiction, subject to confirmation by a 
majority vote of the Fire District Fire Board.  Members shall serve without 
remuneration or compensation, and shall be removed from office prior to the end of 
their appointed terms only for cause. 
 
Section A101.3 Terms of Office is deleted. 
 
Section A101.3.1 Initial Appointments is deleted. 
 
Section A101.5 Secretary of Board is amended as follows: 
The fire code official or his designee shall act as Secretary of the Board and shall 
keep a detailed record of all its proceedings, which shall set forth the reasons for its 
decisions, the vote of each member, the absence of a member, and any failure of a 
member to vote. 
 

APPENDIX B 
 



  

7 
 

Table B105.1 Minimum Required Fire Flow and Flow Duration for Buildings is 
amended by adding Footnote c as follows: 
Footnote c: In special circumstances, where the municipal or rural water supply will 
not provide the required 1,500 gpm, the fire code official may accept a lesser 
amount.  This amount shall never be less than 1,000 gpm.  
 

APPENDIX D 
 
Section D103.2 Grade is amended as follows: 
Fire apparatus access roads shall not exceed 12 percent grade. 
The exception is deleted and replaced as follows: 
Exception:  The fire code official may permit the access road grade to increase, but 
shall not exceed 15 percent if fire sprinkler protection is installed. 
 
Section D103.3 Turning Radius is amended as follows: 
The minimum turning radius shall be 28’ (twenty eight feet) inside and 50’ (fifty feet) 
outside diameter for all fire department access roads and parking lots. 
 

 
 

Chino Valley Fire District 
 

Resolution No. _16-02________ 
 

A FORMAL RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CHINO VALLEY  FIRE 
DISTRICT ADOPTINGAMENDING  THE 2012 EDITION OF THE INTERNATIONAL FIRE 
CODE., AND PROVIDING FOR CERTAIN ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS THERETO, 
REGULATING AND GOVERNING THE SAFEGUARDING OF LIFE AND PROPERTY 
FROM FIRE AND EXPLOSION HAZARDS ARISING FROM THE STORAGE, HANDLING 
AND USE OF HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES, MATERIALS AND DEVICES, AND FROM 
CONDITIONS HAZARDOUS TO LIFE OR PROPERTY AND THE OCCUPANCY OF 
BUILDINGS AND PREMISES IN THE CHINO VALLEY  FIRE DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR 
THE ISSUANCE OF PERMITS AND COLLECTION OF FEES THEREFORE; AND 
AUTHORIZING THE APPLICATION AND ENFORCEMENT THEROF. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Chino Valley Fire District did, on or about, December 10, 
2005September 18, 2014, adopt the 200312 International Fire Code together with certain 
amendments thereto (IFC); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Chino Valley Fire District is authorized, pursuant to A.R.S. 48-805 
(B)(6) to adopt a nationally recognized fire code and amend or revise the adopted code. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Chino Valley Fire District wishes to adopt amend the 2012 Edition of 
the International Fire Code to provide for a more uniform practice and enforcement of the 
Fire Code, consistent and together with various other enforcement agencies with whom 
Chino Valley Fire District may interact; and 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved as follows: 



  

8 
 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED that the Chino Valley Fire District hereby adopts amends the 
2012 Edition of the International Fire Code (IFC), with amendments including Appendix 
Chapters A through I.Chapter 9, Section 903.2.1.1 Group A-1; Chapter 9, Section 903.2.1.3 
Group A-3; Chapter 9, Section 903.2.1.4 Group A-4; Chapter 9, Section 903.2.3 Group E , 
Exception 2; Chapter 9, Section 903.2.4 Group F, Item 1; Chapter 9, Section 903.2.4 Group 
F, Item 3; Chapter 9, Section 903.2.6 Group I, Exception 3; Chapter 9, Section 903.2.7 
Group M, Item 1; Chapter 9, Section 903.2.7 Group M, Item 3; Chapter 9, Section 903.2.8 
Group R, Exception 1; Chapter 9, Section 903.2.8 Group R, Exception 2; Chapter 9, Section 
903.2.9 Group S, Item 1; Chapter 9, Section 903.2.9 Group S, Item 3; Chapter 9, Section 
903.2.9.1 Repair Garages, Item 1; Chapter 9, Section 903.2.9.1 Repair Garages, Item 2; 
Chapter 9, Section 903.2.10 Group S-2, Item 1; Chapter 9, Section 903.2.13 Group B, Item 
1; Chapter 9, Section 903.2.14 Group U; Chapter 11, Section 1103.5.3 Building Addition; 
Chapter 11, Section 1103.5.7 Group E, Exception 2; Chapter 11, Section 1103.5.8 Group R-
3, Care Facilities; Chapter 11, Section 1103.5.10 Fire Wall Breech. 
 
 FURTHER RESOLVED, that there shall be inserted into the additions and 
modifications to the Fire Code, where applicable, the name of Chino Valley Fire District as 
the adopting and enforcement jurisdiction, including the recitation within Section 101.1 of the 
IFC. 
 
 FURTHER RESOLVED, that the geographic limits referred to in certain sections of 
the additions and modifications adopted herein are hereby established as follows: 
 
 5704.2.9.6.1 (geographic limits in which the storage of Class I and II liquids in 
above-ground tanks outside of buildings is prohibited):  per zoning requirements of the 
Town of Chino Valley, Town of Paulden and/or Yavapai County Planning and Building; and 
 
 5706.2.4.4 1 (geographic limits in which the storage of Class I and II liquids in 
above-ground tanks is prohibited):  per zoning requirements of the Town of Chino Valley, 
Town of Paulden and/or Yavapai County Planning and Building; and 
 
 5806.2 (geographic limits in which the storage of flammable cryogenic fluids is 
prohibited):  per zoning requirements of the Town of Chino Valley, Town of Paulden and/or 
Yavapai County Planning and Building; and 
 
 6104.2 (geographic limits in which the storage of liquefied petroleum gas is 
restricted for the protection of heavily populated or congested areas):  per zoning 
requirements of the Town of Chino Valley, Town of Paulden, and/or Yavapai County 
Planning and Building. 
 
 FUTHER RESOLVED, that if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of 
this resolution is for any reason held to be unconstitutional; such decision shall not affect the 
validity of the remaining portions of this resolution. 
 
 FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution and the rules, regulations, provisions, 
amendments, requirements, orders and matters established and adopted hereby shall take 
effect and be in full force and effect from and after the date of its approval. 
 
 FURTHER RESOLVED, that to the extent the provisions of the Amendments and 
modifications to the 2012 Edition of the International Fire Code provisions adopted herein 
conflict with the provisions of the 2003 IFC previously adopted by the Chino Valley Fire 
District, as amended, the modifications authorized herein shall govern. 



  

9 
 

 
 RESOLVED and ADOPTED this _____ day of _____________, 20_____ . 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________________ 
Board Chairman 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________________________________ 
Board Clerk 
 
 
 
 



TO:  Fire Board 
FROM: Chief Freitag 
DATE:  June 8, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVE RESOLUTION 2016-03 AND SINGLE OWNER ANNEXATION 

16 W. BIG CHINO ROAD, PAULDEN – PARCEL #304-06-102A 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
Approve Resolution 2016-03 and Single Owner Annexation 16 W Big Chino Rd, 
Paulden, Parcel # 304-06-102A 
 
If you have any questions, please call Assistant Chief of Administration Tharp or myself 
at 772-7711. 
  
 



P
a
g
e
 4

6
 o

f 
1
2
6



P
a
g
e
 4

7
 o

f 
1
2
6



Page 48 of 126



P
a
g
e
 4

9
 o

f 
1
2
6



TO:  Fire Board 
FROM: Chief Freitag 
DATE:  June 8, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVE RESOLUTION 2016-04 AND SINGLE OWNER ANNEXATION 

320 E VERDE RANCH ROAD, PAULDEN – PARCEL #304-01-055B 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
Approve Resolution 2016-04 and Single Owner Annexation 320 E Verde Ranch 
Rd, Paulden, Parcel # 304-01-055B 
 
If you have any questions, please call Assistant Chief of Administration Tharp or myself 
at 772-7711. 
  
 



P
a
g
e
 5

0
 o

f 
1
2
6



P
a
g
e
 5

1
 o

f 
1
2
6



P
a
g
e
 5

2
 o

f 
1
2
6



Page 53 of 126



P
a
g
e
 5

4
 o

f 
1
2
6



TO:  Fire Board 
FROM: Chief Freitag 
DATE:  June 8, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVE NEW J615 INVESTIGATION POLICY; APPROVE POLICY 

AMENDMENTS EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2016 NEW JOINT POLICY J407 
RETIREMENT AND DEFERRED COMPENSATION BENEFITS AND 
NEW JOINT POLICY J408 INSURANCE AND RELATED BENEFITS 

 
Suggested Motion: 
 
Approve New Policy J615 Investigation Policy effective immediately, and New 
Joint Policies J407 Retirement and Deferred Compensation Benefits, and J408 
Insurance and Related Benefits effective July 1, 2016. 
 
If you have any questions, please call Assistant Chief of Administration Tharp or myself 
at 772-7711. 
  
 



J615 INVESTIGATIONS 
Created/Revised: 06/21/2016 
Created 06/21/2016 
Reviewed: 11/24/2015 
 

1 

I. PURPOSE 
 

The purpose of this policy is to establish the standards of investigative processes 
for members of the District. 
 

II. SCOPE 
 

This policy applies to all members. 
 

III. POLICY 
 
The following policy is the basis for informal and formal investigation processes, 
recognition of Weingarten, Garrity and Laudermill rights and  adherence to a 
standard that will provide accurate, factual information regardless of the 
disciplinary outcome (if any). Investigations of employees may be initiated due to 
complaint, concern or potential violation of policy or employee performance that 
would potentially result in discipline. Additionally, investigative processes may be 
in conjunction and simultaneous to criminal/civil activities outside of the 
organization.  
 

IV. DEFINITIONS 
 
Informal Investigation: use of informational gathering, through multiple sources, 
to substantiate whether a claim or complaint has validity. Possible informational 
sources may include, but not limited to: general organizational software 
programs, social media, and personnel comments (not compelled), or sources 
that are open to public review. Usually the result of this form of investigation is 
not formal discipline.  
 
Formal Investigation: use of informational gathering, through multiple sources, 
to substantiate a claim or complaint from an informal investigation or if the claim 
or complaint is egregious, criminal or a violation of policy or performance 
standards that the use of a formal investigation is warranted.  Possible 
informational sources may include, but not be limited to: restricted organizational 
software, email, personnel interviews or written statements (compelled by 
Garrity) or sources that may be obtained through law enforcement, court order or 
legal compulsion.  
 
Weingarten Representation: Allowance by the organization to have the 
employee accompanied by a labor/employee representative during the 
investigative questioning. The employee may request a labor/employee 
representative prior to a formal interview or investigation process. If the request 
does not unduly delay the interview, meeting or process; accommodation shall 
be provided for the employee and their representative to attend. 

Page 55 of 126



J615 INVESTIGATIONS 
Created/Revised: 06/21/2016 
Created 06/21/2016 
Reviewed: 11/24/2015 
 

2 

 
Garrity Warning: Admonishment to the employee regarding being compelled to 
answer the investigative questions of the employer to the best of their ability. 
Statements made (or written) under a Garrity Warning can not be used to 
substantiate legal charges or claims against the reporting party as this would be 
a violation of their Fifth Amendment Right. This will require a signature of 
acknowledgement by the recipient. 
 
Laudermill Hearing: Formal disciplinary meeting that will potentially result in a 
property loss (wages, benefit, rank, employment, etc.).  The employee(s) will be 
presented with the investigative findings and materials – including all written, 
recorded testimony and other supportive findings of the investigation. The 
employee(s) will have this opportunity to present information/evidence to dispute 
the formal disciplinary outcome. This is not a part of the Appeals/Grievance 
Process.  
 
Letter/Notice of Investigation: Written notification of the parameters of the 
investigation. The notice will be certified mailed to the employee(s) with adequate 
notification for the scheduled attendance or reschedule of the investigative 
interview. The notice will include the claim or complaint, specific instructions, and 
restrictions. This will require a signature of acknowledgement by the recipient.  
 
Investigative Summary: Written, factual summary of the formal investigative 
findings. This report may be used in the overall disciplinary process (if 
necessary), but should be provided by the impartial investigator(s) to the 
requesting supervisor(s). The summary report shall also be supported by all 
investigative materials obtained throughout the process. This will information will 
be public records restricted during the investigation and possible 
Appeals/Grievance Process.   
 
Informal Investigation: 

 
• Verification of possible validity of the complaint, concern or potential violation 

of policy/personal conduct can be achieved through general departmental 
software, social media, phone calls, interviews, and other public sources of 
information.  
 

• The ultimate purpose of the informal investigative process is to refute or 
validate a complaint or concern. If the informal process refutes the complaint 
or concern, no further action is warranted.  

 

 

Page 56 of 126



J615 INVESTIGATIONS 
Created/Revised: 06/21/2016 
Created 06/21/2016 
Reviewed: 11/24/2015 
 

3 

• Another supervisor or Human Resource personnel may be utilized to verify or 
review the informal information to validate the resulting course of action. This 
is strictly confidential. 
 

• If the informal investigative process results in validating or has a significant 
probability in validating  a complaint, concern or potential violation of 
policy/personal conduct that will result (or potentially result) in formal 
discipline, the process shall proceed to a formal investigative process.  

 
• An Investigative Summary of the informal investigative process shall be 

archived for the purpose of validating or refuting the reported complaint, 
concern or potential violation. This is the only documentation that is required 
and will be archived as per the Records Retention laws of the State of 
Arizona.  

 
Formal Investigation: 
 
• Formal Investigations may be handled by Human Resources, Assistant 

Chiefs or upper management supervisors, however, it is highly 
recommended, but not mandatory, that the supervisor that the potential 
discipline will originate from, is not involved in the formal investigative 
process. This will promote an unbiased review of the information – providing a 
factual Investigative Summary devoid of any personal feelings, bias or 
interpretation. If necessary, and in extreme cases, a party outside of the 
organization may be utilized to conduct and report on the formal investigative 
interviews/process.  
 

• The employee that is subject of the formal investigation shall be placed on 
Administrative Leave pending the outcome of the investigation and discipline 
process if the complaint, concern or potential violation is directly related to 
their job performance, may result in loss of property (damaged property 
restitution, time off without pay, demotion or termination), or potentially 
involves civil law violation(s) or potential criminal activity. 

 
• If the complaint, concern or potential violation does not rise to a level of 

potential loss of property, suspension of job performance, civil or criminal 
activity, it will be the discretion of the Assistant Chiefs or the Fire Chief if the 
employee will be placed on Administrative Leave.  

 
• The employee(s) must remain available for the formal investigative process 

(as regularly assigned work schedule), but may request a rescheduling if 
there are extenuating circumstances. 

 

Page 57 of 126



J615 INVESTIGATIONS 
Created/Revised: 06/21/2016 
Created 06/21/2016 
Reviewed: 11/24/2015 
 

4 

• Formal Letters and Notices of Investigation will be sent to the employee(s) via 
certified mail. The Letter/Notice shall contain the subject of the investigation, 
date, time and place of interview, and any specific instructions and/or 
restrictions.  
 

• The employee(s) being interviewed, and their supervisor(s), shall also be 
contacted directly by the investigative supervisor as to the letter/notice being 
sent and the proposed schedule for investigative interview(s) – any 
discussion as to the content of the investigation is strictly confidential. 
 

• Any employee(s) being interviewed have the right of Weingarten 
representation. The employee representative may be union, supervisor, 
coworker or legal counsel. However, this is not a court of law and the 
representative is there as a witness, ensure that the interviewee civil rights 
are not being violated and to assist with clarifying processes. They are not to 
interfere with the interview/statement process. If the employee representative 
coerces, manipulates or otherwise disrupts the interview, they will be 
removed from the interview. 

 
• The employee interviews will be recorded via audio recording or written 

submission. Full copies of the audio or written submission will be part of the 
investigative documents and shall be archived as per the Records Retention 
laws of the State of Arizona.  

 
• All employees involved with an interview or written submission shall be 

presented with a Garrity Warning and the warning shall be read, clarified, 
acknowledged and signed by the participants prior to the interview or request 
for written submission.  

 
• If the employee(s), regardless if they are the subject of the investigation or 

not, is misleading, evasive or refuses to answer questions during an interview 
or written statement, they will be subject to the discipline policy  – up to and 
including termination.  

 
• If an employee wishes to add an addendum to their original written or verbal 

responses, they can request another interview or submit a written addendum 
and will be subject to the original Garrity warning presented.  

 
• Further, if follow up or clarification is required for interview or written 

submissions, the employees will still be subject to the original Garrity Warning  
 

Page 58 of 126



J615 INVESTIGATIONS 
Created/Revised: 06/21/2016 
Created 06/21/2016 
Reviewed: 11/24/2015 
 

5 

• Investigations will be done expeditiously. Due to circumstances, there may be 
a lengthy process and status updates will be reported to the subject(s) of the 
investigation and involved supervisors biweekly, if necessary. 

 
• Upon completion of the investigation, an Investigative Summary will be 

presented, with all accompanying documentation, audio files, and data to the 
supervisor that will potentially issue the discipline for review. The Investigative 
Summary may include recommendations for consideration for discipline, 
resolution or no further action – however, this is not required for the 
Investigative Summary. 

 
• All investigative materials shall be submitted to Human Resources and 

archived as per Records Retention laws of the State of Arizona. 
 

Post Investigation 
 
• If the investigation results in no action, then notification via written letter or 

notice will be made to the employee(s). Additionally, the supervisor that 
initiated the investigation or possible discipline may want to verbally notify the 
employee(s) of the outcome. 
 

• If the investigation results in a consideration of discipline other than a property 
loss, then the supervisor will issue the proposed discipline to the employee(s) 
as outline in the Discipline Policy and the proposed discipline is subject to 
grievance proceedings.  
 

• If the investigation results in a potential property loss (damaged property 
restitution, time off without pay, demotion or termination), a Laudermill 
Hearing will be scheduled with the employee(s) subject to the potential 
discipline.  
 

• A notice of Laudermill Hearing will be will be sent to the employee(s) via 
certified mail. The Letter/Notice shall contain the subject of the investigation, 
date, time and place of hearing, and any specific instructions and/or 
restrictions. 
 

• All investigative findings - including all recordings, data and documentation 
shall be provided to the employee(s) that are subject to the Laudermill 
Hearing, at the employee(s) request. This will allow the employee(s) the 
opportunity to review the investigative information and provide refuting or 
additional information for consideration at the Laudermill Hearing. 
 

• An employee may waive their right to a Laudermill Hearing through written 
notification to Human Resources or supervisor that is oversight to the 

Page 59 of 126



J615 INVESTIGATIONS 
Created/Revised: 06/21/2016 
Created 06/21/2016 
Reviewed: 11/24/2015 
 

6 

Laudermill Hearing. At which time, the proposed discipline will be issued to 
the employee(s) as outlined in the Discipline Policy and the proposed 
discipline is subject to grievance proceedings.  
 

• The employee(s) is allowed representation, as per Weingarten, at the 
Laudermill Hearing. The employee representative may be union, supervisor, 
coworker or legal counsel. However, this is not a court of law and the 
representative is there as a witness, ensure that the interviewee civil rights 
are not being violated and to assist with clarifying processes. They are not to 
interfere with the interview/statement process. If the employee representative 
coerces, manipulates or otherwise disrupts the hearing, they will be removed 
from the hearing proceedings.  
 

• The employee(s) may request additional attendees at the Laudermill Hearing 
for the narrow purpose to refute or present additional investigative information 
not otherwise considered. However, prior to the hearing, there must be a 
written request for the attendee(s) and purpose of their participation at the 
hearing for consideration. Based on the written request, a determination of 
participation will be notified to the employee(s), prior to the hearing, by 
Human Resources or supervisor that is oversight to the Laudermill Hearing.  
 

• The Laudermill Hearing will be audio recorded and the recording/documents 
presented will be considered part of the investigative findings documentation 
and archived as per the Record Retention laws of the State of Arizona.  
 

• After the Laudermill Hearing, if the investigation results in discipline, then the 
supervisor will issue the proposed discipline to the employee(s) as outlined in 
the Discipline Policy and the proposed discipline is subject to grievance 
proceedings. 
 

• After the Laudermill Hearing, if the investigation results in no action, then 
notification via written letter or notice will be made to the employee(s). 
Additionally, the supervisor that initiated the investigation or possible 
discipline may want to verbally notify the employee(s) of the outcome. 

 
All investigative documents, data and audio files are strictly confidential. Discussion of 
investigation findings, documents, files, proceedings or outcomes outside of those 
directly involved is strictly prohibited and may result in disciplinary action as outlined in 
policy.  

Page 60 of 126



J407 RETIREMENT AND DEFERRED COMPENSATION BENEFITS 
Created/Revised: 12/02/2008 / 00/00/2016 
Created/Revised: 00/00/2016 
Reviewed: 05/24/2016 

 

1 

EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2016 
 
I. PURPOSE 

 
The purpose of this policy is to outline the pension systems and deferred 
compensation benefits that are offered to District members. 
 

II. SCOPE 
 
The availability of pension and deferred compensation retirement benefits applies 
to all full-time and some part-time District members as outlined by each plan. 
 

III. POLICY 
 

PSPRS Retirement 
Fire operations members belong to the Public Safety Personnel Retirement 
System (PSPRS) and contribute a percentage of their wages into a retirement 
account. A deferred retirement allowance is available to public safety members 
with at least 10 years of service. Members who terminate their employment 
before retirement may withdraw their accumulated contribution in a lump-sum 
payment upon separation. 
 
All other full-time non-PSPRS members will participate in the Arizona State 
Retirement System (ASRS). 
 
 
DROP Program 
Members hired prior to 1/1/2012 with 20 years of credited PSPRS service are 
eligible to enter the Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP) Program. Members 
interested in entering the DROP Program must contact Human Resources to 
complete the paperwork.  
 
PSPRS eliminated the DROP Program for individuals hired on or after 1/1/2012. 
 
DROP Program prior to 7/1/2013 
Members who have entered the DROP Program prior to 7/1/2013 must 
contribute their normal PSPRS percentage deduction into PSPRS, the District’s 
401(a) plan, or 457(b) plan. The District will contribute the PSPRS rate as set on 
June 30, 2012 into the 401(a) plan. 
 
DROP Program effective 7/1/2013 
The District will contribute matching funds up to 10% of a member's earnings into 
a 401(a) account if the member enters DROP on or after July 1, 2013 and the 
member is contributing up to 10% into PSPRS, a 401(a), 457(b) account, or a 

Page 61 of 126



J407 RETIREMENT AND DEFERRED COMPENSATION BENEFITS 
Created/Revised: 12/02/2008 / 00/00/2016 
Created/Revised: 00/00/2016 
Reviewed: 05/24/2016 

 

2 

combination of those accounts. The Districts contributions will only be deposited 
into an employer sponsored and qualified 401(a) plan.  
 
ASRS 10/10 Program effective 7/1/2013 
Members that are enrolled in the Arizona State Retirement System (ASRS) that 
have accumulated 20 years of service or 80 points (years of service plus age) 
may contribute up to 10% of their earnings into ASRS,  a 401(a), or 457(b) 
account and the District will match the percentage up to 10% for 5 years. The 
member is not required to terminate employment at the end of 5 years. The 
Districts contributions will only be deposited into an employer sponsored and 
qualified 401(a) plan.  

 
Public Safety Officer’s Benefit Act (PSOB) 
The PSOB Act provides a benefit* to the eligible survivors of a public safety 
officer whose death is the direct and proximate result of a traumatic injury 
sustained in the line of duty. The Act also provides the same benefit to a public 
safety officer who has been permanently and totally disabled as the direct result 
of a catastrophic personal injury sustained in the line of duty. The injury must 
permanently prevent the individual from performing any gainful work. 

 
*Annually, on October 1st, the benefit will be adjusted by the percentage of 
change in the Consumer price Index. 
 
A copy of the Act is available from Human Resources.  

 
401(a) Deferred Compensation Plan 
The District offers a 401(a) Deferred Compensation Plan. Upon initiation of the 
plan for the Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority (CAFMA) effective July 1, 
2016, any active PSPRS employee that has been a continuous fulltime member 
of either the Central Yavapai or Chino Valley Fire Districts for at least 4 years will 
become eligible for a one time eligibility window of 24 months to elect to 
participate in the 401(a) plan with a minimum of a 1% (gross wages) employee 
contribution. Alternatively, the fulltime member may demonstrate  4 years of 
continuous full time service with either the Central Yavapai or Chino Valley Fire 
Districts when combined with  the member’s term of employment with CAFMA. 
On the member’s fourth anniversary of continuous full time service,  the member 
has 24 months to elect to participate in the 401(a) plan. All new PSPRS 
members of CAFMA will become eligible to participate in this plan once they 
have been a continuous fulltime member for 4 years. Once eligibility is reached, 
the member has twenty-four months to elect to participate in the 401(a) plan with 
a minimum of 1% of salary contributed. The option to participate is available only 
during this twenty-four month time frame. 
 
The percentage that the member contributes to the PSPRS 401(a) can only be 

Page 62 of 126



J407 RETIREMENT AND DEFERRED COMPENSATION BENEFITS 
Created/Revised: 12/02/2008 / 00/00/2016 
Created/Revised: 00/00/2016 
Reviewed: 05/24/2016 

 

3 

changed at the beginning of each fiscal year and can never be less than 1% of 
salary. 
 
Any ASRS employee that begins employment with the Central Arizona Fire and 
Medical Authority shall have 24 months to decide to participate in the ASRS 
401(a) plan or the Nationwide 401(a) plan. The ASRS Plan requires a 5 year 
100% vesting schedule at 20% per year. The Nationwide 401(a) plan does not 
have a vesting requirement. Both plans require a set employee contribution that 
cannot be changed during employment with CAFMA.  

 
457(b) Deferred Compensation Plan 
The District offers a 457(b) Deferred Compensation Plan. Any member, except 
reserves, may choose to contribute a percentage of their salary or a flat dollar 
amount into the 457(b) plan. 
 
Employer sponsored Alternative Social Security Plan 
CAFMA offers an alternative contribution plan as a result of discontinuing 
established 218 agreements that existed with the Central Yavapai and Chino 
Valley Fire Districts. The Alternative Social Security Plan is for ASRS members 
only and is in effect as of July 1, 2016. 
 
The plan offers a contribution match of employer funds into a 401(a) account up 
to a maximum employee contribution rate of 6.2% of the employee’s gross 
earnings into his or her 457, 401(a), or combination of the two plans. The 
employee may elect to contribute less than 6.2%, in which case the employer will 
reduce its contribution match by the same amount.  
 
The employer contribution will only be into a 401(a) account in the name of the 
participating employee. If the employee wishes to establish a 401(a) plan 
account, see the section specific to 401(a) Deferred Compensation Plan for 
those requirements. If the employee does not wish to participate in the 401(a) 
plan, the employee may contribute up to the full 6.2% to his or her 457 account; 
however, the employer must establish a 401(a) account on the employee’s behalf 
for the employer match contributions. Under these circumstances, the employee 
will not have an ability to contribute to that account.  
 

 

Page 63 of 126



J408 INSURANCE AND RELATED BENEFITS 
Created/Revised: 10/11/2010 / 00/00/2016 
Created/Revised: 00/00/2016 
Reviewed: 05/24/2016 
EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2016 

 

1 

I. PURPOSE 
 

The purpose of this benefits policy is to identify the various insurance related 
benefits for members of the District and how they apply based on the type of 
employment held with the District. 
 

II. SCOPE 
 

This policy applies to all full-time and part-time District members. 
 
III. POLICY 
 

Health Insurance 
The District may provide health insurance coverage for all members who are 
scheduled to work 24 or more hours per week. Dependent coverage may be 
available to all members who are scheduled to work 24 or more hours per week. 
The member's cost will be pro-rated, depending on the number of hours worked.  
 
The District may pay a portion of the dependent coverage each fiscal year, as 
funded by the Board. 

 
Life Insurance 
All full-time members may be provided with a basic life insurance policy. The 
member is automatically included in a group term-life insurance plan at the same 
time the medical insurance coverage takes effect at no cost to the member.  

 
Long Term Disability 
Both PSPRS and ASRS provide a disability benefit program for members. This 
program provides a monthly benefit designed to partially replace income lost 
during periods of total disability resulting from a covered injury, illness, or other 
disability condition. 

 
Post Employment Health Plan (PEHP) 
The District will contribute 1% of a member's gross earnings into the Post 
Employment Health Plan (PEHP) each pay period effective July 1, 2016, for all 
members who are scheduled to work 20 or more hours per week (receiving a 
prorated contribution). Members who have at least 17 years of combined (CYFD 
or CVFD and CAFMA) continuous service and leave employment due to 
retirement must, as a group, choose to have a set percentage, a flat dollar 
amount, or none of their accrued vacation and sick leave contributed into the 
PEHP plan pre-tax*. This decision must be made by March of each fiscal year. 
On an annual basis at the beginning of each fiscal year, the Board of Directors 
will approve the dollar amount or percentage chosen by the retirees. The 

Page 64 of 126



J408 INSURANCE AND RELATED BENEFITS 
Created/Revised: 10/11/2010 / 00/00/2016 
Created/Revised: 00/00/2016 
Reviewed: 05/24/2016 
EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2016 

 

2 

employees that voluntarily separate service prior to 17 years of continuous 
service will have their accrued vacation and sick leave paid out per policy in a 
cash disbursement or may elect to have the funds placed in their 457 account (if 
applicable). Any employee that is terminated shall be paid out per policy in a 
cash disbursement only.  
 
*There are two PEHP accounts:  A set percentage will go into a different account 
than a flat dollar amount. The Board of Directors, upon recommendation of those 
scheduled for retirement, may elect to have an equitable dollar amount placed in 
a more flexible PEHP account with the balance above the set dollar amount 
being deposited into the more restrictive – premium only PEHP account.  

 

Page 65 of 126


	CV General Fund - Public.pdf
	1 income statement
	2 balance sheet
	3 Rev Exp Graphs
	Rev Graph
	Rev Data
	Exp Graph
	Exp Data

	4 tax collection
	5 cash flow
	6-Reconcillation signature page
	11 reconciliation summary
	12 reconciliation checks and charges cleared
	13 reconciliation checks and charges outstanding
	14 reconciliation deposits and credits cleared
	15 reconciliation deposits and credits outstanding
	16 reconciliation register
	17 reconciliation adjustments report
	19 capital reserve fund
	20 treasurer's report
	21 trial balance worksheet




